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The contolidated fiiancial sratements Tor 2020 shown below
have been prepared in accordance with the Internavonal Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for application within the
European Unior with comparat ve IFRS figures fo- 2019

The cendensed statutery financisl statements are presented i the
financrsl supplement and are prepared wr accordznce with Zelgian

accounting standards (BGAAP).

Only the cansolidated financial statements. as set out on the folloving
pages prosent a faith™ul p cture of the aszets, “nancial postion and

results of the Lotus Bakeries Group.

In |I(_]N of the fact that the statutory annual Tmancial statemerts gie
only a limited picture of the financial situation of the Group. the Board
of Directors censiders it appropriate to only present an abridged version
of the statutory annual statements of Lotus Bakeries NV, in accordance

with A-r cle 317 of the Selgian Comaanics and Associations Code

The full statutory annual statements, together with the statutory annual

report of the Board of Directars and the statutory audit report of the
Auditor, will be submitred to the National Bank of Belgium within
the |egd”;’ p!’CSCFIbGd term These dOCUTTICrTTS are a\’allabie on the
corporate website of Lotus Bakeries, www.lotusbakeries.com (irnvestor
Relations) or can be obtained for free from the Corporate Secretary
of Lotus Bakeries on simple request.

This financial supplement is 2 part of tre 2023 annual report of
Lotus Bakeries NV, This annual report consists of two parts which
are available on the Lotus Bakeries corporate website and also on
simple request, separately and free of charge, from the Lotus Bakeries
Corporate Secretary.

The Auditor has issued an u~qualified audit opinior with respect to the
consolidated and the statutory annual staternents of Lotus Bakeries NV,
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated balance sheet

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR NOTES 31-12-2020 31-2.2019 INTHO JSANDS OF EUR NOTES 31-12-2020 31222009
ASSETS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 622,840 641122 EQUITY 433,744 402,477
Property, plant and equipment 5 258.182 263,793 Share Capital 14 16,388 16.388
Gocdwil 6 216,485 229365 Retamed earnings 476,724 422,724
Intangible assets 7 135.966 142,709 Treasury shares 15,16, 24 (11.474) (15.866)
Investment in other comparies g 4403 2243 Other reserves 8 {47961) {20.848)
Deferred tax assets 8 3,351 2.505 Non-controlling interests 67 i
Other non-current assets 9.20 453 507
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 261,841 39,584
CURRENT ASSETS 121,387 171,507 Interest-bearing loans and borrawings 1307 198.156 158,010
Inventanes 10 46,827 44,461 Deferred tan liahilties 8 57195 50737
Trade receivables n 82,856 79072 Net employee defined h'enefir liabilities 18 3.748 Iz
VAT receivables il 5530 5.280 Pravisions 19 282 285
Income tax recervables 1 3142 1,075 Derivative financial instruments 20 m 2340
Other amounts receivable il 256 172 Orhérnnn—current ligbilities il 1743 24500
Cash and cash equivalents 12.13 81.261 40093 - ‘
Deferred charges and accrued acome s 1354 CURRENT LIABILITIES 148,642 170,568
Interest-bearing loans and berrowings 77 12552 36,579
TOTALASSETS 844,227 812,629 Net employee defined benefit liabilies 18 317 325
Provisions 19 21 2
Trade payables 2 87370 28.N6
Employse benehit expenses and social security by 26,508 4145
VAT payables 2 145 254
Tax payables 2 1270 11,630
Other current hiabilities 22 4,624 5240
Accrued charges and deferred income 2 4404 3.657
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 844,227 812,629
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Consolidated income statement

Lotus Bakeries

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR NOTES 2020 2009 INTHOUSANDS OF EUR NOTES 2020 201
TURNOVER 663,289 612,737 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale {216.376) (197.799) §terns that may be subsequently reclassified to
Services and other goods {176.804) (168.966) profitand loss @ 47
Emloyee beneh: expense 7 e (12349%) Currericy translation differences {27.299) 7929
hy f
Depreciation and amorhsation on intangible G (Loss} on cash flow hedges.net o tax 108 12
and tangible assets 25 {21001 (17.754) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 22 (124)
fmpairment on inventories, CoRtiacts in progress Remeasurement gains [ {lasses) on defined
and trade debtors 0.1 (2ng) (2.135) beneht plans 18 22 {124
Other operating charges 2 (5.919) {3.254) Qther comprehensive income (27,169) 7293
Other operating income 2% 7751 3,555 Total comprehensive income - attributable (o 55,376 83,062
Non-controlling interests (104) 1842
RECURRENT OPERATING RESULT {REBIT)® 11,14 102,891
Equity halders of Lotus Bakeries 55480 91220
Non-recurrent operating result 27 {4.593) 2.92)
EARNINGS PER SHARE 30
OPERATING RESULT {EBIT) @ 106,521 100,599
{EBIT) 065 Weighted average number of shares 809.664 807476
Financial result 28 3,004 2514
manciaresy (5009 254 Basic earnings per share (EUR) - attributable to
! 2726 4460
ierest ncorme (expense) @728) 460 Non-contraling interests (0.06) 1.06
Forei h k k| 2232
oreign exchange gains (fosses) ? Equity holders of Lotus Bakenes 102.01 92.77
Qthes financial income (expense 329 285
' {expense) ) t8s) Weighted average number of shares after effect
of dilutien 811184 809848
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAXES 103 517 98,086
Diluted eamings per share {EUR) - attnbutable to
Tases 8,29 0972) @am
Non-contralling interests {0.06) 1.06
RESULT AFTER TAXES 82,545 75,769 Equity holders of Lotus Bakenes 101.82 9250
NET RESULT - attributable tor 82,545 715.76% Total number of shares 816,013 816013
Non-controlling intesests (4B) 857 Earnings per share (EUR) - attributable to
Equity holders of Lotus Bakenes 82,593 74912 Non-cantrolling interests (0.06) 1.05
Equity holders of Latus Bakenes 101.22 91.80
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

IN THOUSANDS QF EUR CEE:'JLEA? SHARE PREMIUM CAPITAL gﬂaﬁmg‘g
EQUITY as on 1 January 2020 3,59 12,797 16,588 422,724
Net result of the Firancial Year 82.593

Currency translsuion differences

Remeasurement gains f (losses) on defined benefit plans

Cash flow hedge reserves

Taxes an tems taken divectly to or transfesred from equity
Net income { {expense) for the period recognised directly in equity
Total comprehensive income | (expense) for the period 82,593
Dwvidends (26112
Acguisiven | sale own shares
Employee share-based compensation expense 50
Impact wntten put sptions on non-contrailing mterests (4.425)
Other 1423
EQUITY as on 31 December 2020 359 12,797 16,388 476,724
EQUITY as en 1 January 2019 3,590 12,729 16,319 369.114
Net result of the Financial Year - - 74912

Currency translatwon ditferences -

Remeasurement gains / {losses) on defined benehit plans -

Cash flow hedge reserves

Taxes an ems taken directly to or wransferred from equity i
Net income | {axperise) for the period recognised directly in equity
Total comprehensive income / {expense) for the period - - 14912
Dividend to sharcholders - - (23.664)
Inerease n capital 1 68 63
Acquisition | sale own shares -
Employee share-bated compensation expense 568
Non-controliing intecests Tollewing busiess combinations (284)
Impact written put optrans on non-controlling interests 530
Other 1548
EQUITY as on 31 December 2019 3,591 12,797 16,388 422,724
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REMEASUREMENT
TREASURY TRANSLATION GABJEJ]%EOFSIE«IEESD) CASHHFELDOGVE' OTHER EQUITY PART NON-CONTROLLING
SHARES DIFFERENCES BENEFIT PLANS RESERVES RESERVES OF THE GROUP INTERESTS TOTALEQUITY
{15.846) (1%,200) (302) {6456) (20.848) 402,398 79 402477
82593 {48) 82545
(37243} (27.243) (27.243} {(56) (21.199)
#7) 7 ny )
144 144 144 144
69 (36) 33 33 33
{27.243) 22 08 {27113) (21n3) (56) (2716%)
(27,243} 22 108 (27.13) 55,480 (104) 55,376
(26.112) {26112
4392 - 4392 4392
- 521 521
- {4.425) £l 4.333)
- 1423 1423
(11.474) (47,143) {280} (538) (47,961) 433677 67 43317144
(11,406) (26.844) (178} {134} (27.156) 346,871 56 346,927
74912 857 75769
6.944 6944 6,944 1002 1946
- {170 (170} (170) (170}
- (822} (822 (823 822
- 46 310 356 356 356
- 6944 {124) (512) 6308 6.308 1002 7310
- 6.944 (124) (512) 6,308 81,220 1,859 83,079
(23.664) (603} {24.267)
- 59 69
(4460} {4.460) {4460
568 568
(284) 34 (250)
330 (1.267} (737}
1548 1548
(15.866) (19.900) (302) (646) {20,848) 402,598 ” 402,477
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Consolidated cash flow statement

AnnualReport 2020

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2019 INTHOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2019
Operating activities Investing attivities
Net result {Group) 82,593 4912 (Injtangible assets - acquisitions (26.565) {47478)
(Injtangible assets - other changes 6 514
Depreciation and amortisation of {imtangible assets 21008 17.763 Acquistion of subsidiarics (26.108) w281)
Net valuahion sllowance current assets 2710 2135 Finsncial assets - other changes i) @2
Provsions 2 #o Net cash used in investing activities (48,826) (91.476)
Disposal of fixed assets 121 69
Financial result 3.004 2514 Net cash flow before financing activities 53,679 (8.073)
Taxes 20972 na
Employee share-based compensation expense 52 568 Financing activities
Non-controllng interests a8) 857 Dividencs paid (25.520) {24.059)
Gross cash provided by operating activities 131,133 121,365 Treasury shares 619 3
Proceeds of capital ncrease 69
Decrease [ (Increase) minventories (6.302) {5.804) Proceeds { {Reimbursement) of long-term borrowings 41497 25,503
Decrease f (Increase) in trade accounts receivable {5.092) {6.870) Proceeds { {Reimbursement) of short-term borrowings {24109 {3.195)
Decrease f (Increase) in other assets {1.077) 3,257 Leasing debts (3.214) 289
Increase f (Decroase) in trade accounts payable 105 861 Proceeds / {Reimbursement) of long-term recervables 56 (27
Incraase | (Decrease) in other liabilities 4521 {1.515) Het cash low from financing attivities (5.621) 247
Change in operating working capital (7.845) {10,071)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 48,058 (5.926)
Income tax paid (15.96%) {26,675} Cash and cash eguivalents on January | 40093 45,597
Interest paid {41309 {2.812) Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (1780) 422
Other financial income and charges received f{pad} {691) 1656 Effect of exthange rate fluctuations on transactions with group entities (5710) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 102,505 83,403 Cash and cash equivalents on 3t December 81.261 40,093
Net change in cash and cash equivatents 48,058 (5.926)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Consolidated companies

1.1 List of consolidated companies

Lotus Bakeries

ADDRESS VAT OR NATIONAL NUMBER 31-12-2020 31122019
A. Fully consolidated subsidiaries % %
Cremers-Ribert NV Gentstraat 52, 9971 Lembeke, BE VAT BE 0427.808 008 1000 000
Interwaffles SA Rue de Likge 39, 6180 Courcelles, BE VAT BE 0429 312 406 100.0 1000
Lotus Bakenes NV Gentstraat 1, 9971 Lembeke, BE AT BE 0401 030 850 1000 1000
Lotus Bakenes Corporate NV Gentstraat 1, 9971 Lembeke. BE VAT BE 0381 554 870 1000 1060
Lotus Bakenes Belgie NV Gentstraat 52,9971 Lembeke. BE VAT BE 04721 694.038 1000 1000
Biscuitene Willems BY MNieuwendorpe 33 Bus C, 9900 Eeklo, BE AT BE 0401 006 413 100.0 1000
BWI.BY Ambachtenstraat 5, 9900 Eeklo, BE VAT BE 0898.518 522 1000 100.0
Lotus Bakenes Interrational und Sehweiz AG Mordstrasse 3. 6300 Zug. CH VAT CHE 105.424 218 1000 1000
Lotus Bakeries CZ s.r.0. Amencka 415/36.12000 Prava2 (7 WAT CZ 1144765 1000 e
Lotus Bakeres GrmbH Rather Strasse 110a, 40476 Dissseldorf, DE VAT DE 811842 170 1080 1000
Bscuiterie Le Glazik SAS Zone Industrielle 2, 29510 Briec-de-"Odet, F VAT FR95 377380 985 000 1000
Biscuiterie Vander SAS Place du Chiteau ¢ bis. 59560 Comines, F VAT FR28 472500 941 1000 100.0
Lotus Bakenes France 545 Place du Chateau § brs. 59560 Comines, F VAT FR93320 509755 1000 1600
Lotus Bakeries UK Lid 10040 Manchester Business Park, Aviator Way, Manchester, M22 5TG. UK VAT GB 606739 232 1000 1000
Natural Balance Foods | td 1 Drakes Drive. Long Crendon, Aylesbury, Bucks, HP18 9BA, UK VAT GB 841254 348 979 £72
Urban Fresh Faods Ltd The Emersen Bulding, 4-8 Emersen Straet. Landan, SE190U. UK VAT GB 8830600 32 1000 1000
Lotus Bakenes Réassurances SA 74 Rue de Merl, 2146 Luxembeurg, L RCS Luxembaurg 853262 1000 1000
Koninklike Peyynenburg BY Nieuwendijk 45, 5664 HB Geldrop, NL VAT NL0OO3897187B01 1000 1000
Peijnenburg’s Koekfabrieken BY Nieuwendijk 43, 5664 HB Geldrop, NL VAT NLOO1351576B01 1000 1000
WK Koek Beheer BY Straek 71, 8464 NE Sinyohannesga, NL VAT NLOO6634139B01 1000 1000
WK Koek Bakker) BV Streek 71, 8464 NE Sintjohannesga, NL VAT HLOO6634151801 1000 1000
Enkhurzer Koekfabnek BY Oosterdvk 3¢, 1601 DA Enkhuizen, NL VAT NL82301112B01 1000 1000
Latus Bakeries Nederland BY Oosterdik 3e, 1601 DA Enkhuizen, NL VAT NLOO4458953801 1000 1000
Lotus Bakeries Asiz Paaific Limited Level 54, Hopawelt Centre. 183, Queen's Road East, Hong Kong tnfand Revenue Department file no 2251477387 1000 1000
Lotus Bakeries North Amenca Inc 1060 Sansame Street Suite 220, San Francisco. CA 941111323, LSA IRS 943124525 1000 1000
Lotus Bakeries S, LLC 2010 Park Center Drive, Mebane NC 27302 IRS B2-1300286 1000 1000
Lotus Bakeries S Manufactunng. LLC 2010 Park Center Drive. Mebane NC 27302 IRS B2-2542596 000 1000
NBF USA Inc. 1755 Park Streat, Suite 200, Naperville, IL 60563 USA (3598146 979 672
Lotus Bakeries Espana S L €} Severo Ochoa, 3. 2a Planta Ohcina 84 28232 Las Rozas {Madnd). Spain VAT ESBR0405137 000 1000
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ADDRESS VAT ORNATIONAL NUMSER %1-32-2020 31-12-2019
A.Fully consolidaved subsidiaties (continued) % %
Annas - Lotus Bakeries Holaing AB Radiovagen 23, SF 135 48 Tyreso, Sweden Regustration no. 556757-7241 100.0 1000
AB Annas Pepparkakor Radiovigen 23 SE135 48 Tyreso, Sweden VAT SE556149914501 1000 1000
Lotus Bakenes North America Calgary Inc t M Gordon LAW Office 2213- 20th Street PO Box 586 Nanton Alberta, Canada

TOL1RO GST 131644 205 1000 1000
Lotus Bakenes Chile SpA Mueva Tajamar #555 OF401. Las Condes, Santiago. Chile 7550095 VAT (RUT) 76 215 081-6 1006 1000
Lotus Bakenes Biscuits Trading {Shanghar) Reom 0102, Floar 15 No 511 Weihai Road. Jing'an District,
Company Ltd Shanghai 200041, PR. China Regustration no $13100000781169357 1000 1000
Lotus Bakenes Korea Co Ltd 4{F, AIA Tower, 16 Tongil-ro-2-gil. Jung-gu. Seoul 04511, South Korea Regisiration no 128-81-19621 100.0 1000
Lotus Bakeries Austria GmbH Fleischmarkt 1612, 1010 Wien, Austria VAT ATU72710827 1000 1000
Lotus Bakeries Itaha Sl Zona Produttea Plattl 17. 39040 Ora (Bolzana). ltaly IT03025890211 5.0 550
Lotus South Africa Manufacturing Lid, Erf 4109, Voortrekker Road, Montana, Wolseley, South Afnca 4190279762 1000 1000
FF2032 NV Gentstraat 19971 Lembeke. BE VAT BE 0730 550 847 1000 1000

On the basis of section 2:403 of the Dutch Civil Code, legal entities with a Dutch company number are exempt from the requirements for 2 local statutory audit Lotus
Bakeries UK Ltd.. Natural Balance Foods Ltd., Urban Fresh Foods Ltd and The Kids Food Company Ltd. are exempt from the requirement for a local statutory audit,
based on section 479A of UK company law. The holding entity guarantees the debts of these two companies as at 31 December 2020.

1.2 Changes in the group structyre in 2020

The following changes to the group structure took place in 2020:

Kiddylicious International Ltd.

In December 2020, an application was made for the winding-up of Kiddylicious
International Ltd. This will be completed automatically in March 2021,

Lotus Bakeries North America Calgary Inc.
In Decembar 2020, an application was made for the winding-up of Lotus Bakeries

North Amenca Calgary Inc. This will be completed automatically in 2027,
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1.3 Legal Structure of the Lotus Bakeries Group at 31 December 2020

LOTUS BAKERIES NV (*)

FF2032 NV (BE) 100%

Biscuit. Willems BV (BE} 99.9%

BWI BV (BE) 99.9%

LB Belgie NV (BE) 100%

Cremers-Ribert N (BE) 99 9%

Interwaffles NV (BE) 99.9%

LB Corporate NV (BE} 100%

LB Reassurances SA (LU) 999%
LENLBY(NDIOO® .

WK Koek Beheer BY (ND100%  — - —-
. t Pajrenburg’s Koekfabrieken BY (NL)100%
Enkhuizer Koekfabriek BY (NL) 100%

WK Koek Bakkeri] BV {NL) 100%
KPRV (NLIO0% . . __.

LB France SAS(FR)T00% . _ .o | Bucutterie Le Glazik SAS (FR) 100%

Biscutterie Vander SAS (FR} 100%

LB International und Schweiz AG {CH) 100% Lotus South Africa Manufacturing (PYT) Lid 100%

FF2032 AG{CH)100%

1B UK Ltd (UK)100%

LB Esparia S.L. (ES}100%

LB GmbH (DE}100%

LB Austria GmbH (AT) 100%

LB CZsro (CZ)100%
Annas-LB-Holding AB (SE) 100%

LB North America Inc. (USAY 100%

LB North America Calgary Ltd (CA)100%
LB Chile SpA (CL)100%

LB Asia Pacific Ltd. (HI(} 100% .
LBliala S.rl. 55%

The Kids Food Company Ltd. (UK} 100%
Urban Fresh Feods Ltd. (UK} 100%
Natural Balance Foods Ltd (LK) 979%

- Annas Pepparkakar AB (SE) 100%

LBUSLLC (USA)100%
LB US Manufacturing LLC (USA) 100%
NBF USA Inc {USA}100%

LB China Ltd. {CN) 100%
LB Kerea Co Ltd. (KR} 100%
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2. Accounting ptinciples

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the
Group have been prepared in accardance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as endorsed by the European Unien (EU).
Lotus Bakeries has used IFRS as its only accounting

standards since 1 January 2005.

2.2 Basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements are presented

in thousands of euros and present the financial
situation as of 31 Decernber 2020.

The accounting principles were applied consistently.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
an the basis of the historical cost price method, with
the exception of the measurement at fair value of

denvatives and financial assets available for sale.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
before allocation of the parent company's result, as
proposed to the General Meeting of Shareholders
and approved by the Board of Directors on 5 February
2021 for publication.

Recent IFRS pronouncements
Endorsement status of the new standards up
until and including 31 December 2020

The following amendments and annual improvements

to standards are mandatory for the first time for the

financial year beginning 1 January 2020 and have
been endorsed by the European Union:

- Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in [FRS Standards (effective 1 January
2020). The revised Conceptual Framework
includes a new chapter on measurement; guid-
ange on reportlng Financ|a| per{ormance: imPrOVEd
definitions and guidance—in particular the defi-
nition of a liahility; and clarifications in important
areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.

- Amendments to the definition of material in 1AS
1 and IAS B (effective 1 January 2020) The
amendments dlarify the definition of matenal and
make the IFRS standards more consistent, The
amendment dlarifies that the reference to obscuring
information addresses situations in which the effect
is similar to omitting or misstating that information.
It also states that an entity assesses materiality in
the context of the financial statements as a whole.
The amendment also clarifies the meaning of
‘primary users of general purpose financial state-
ments’ to whom those financial statements are
directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential
investors, lenders and other creditors” that must
fEIy cn generaf purpose Finﬂn(iﬂl statements Fﬂr
much of the financial information they need. The
amendments are not expected to have a significant

impact on the preparation of financial statements,

aAnnual Repart 2020

- Amendmaents to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7: Inter-
est Rate Benchmark Reform, (effective 1 January
2020}, The amendments require qualitative and
quantitative disclosures to enable users of financial
statements to understand how an entity’s hedging
relationships are affected by the uncertainty ansing

from interest rate benchmark reform,

Amendments to the guidance of IFRS 3 Business
Combinations, that revises the definition of a busi-
ness (effective 1 January 2020). The new guidance
provides a framewark to evaluate when an input
and a substantive process are present {including
far early stage companies that have not generated
outputs) To be a business without outputs, there
will now need to be an organised workforce. The
changes to the definition of a business will likely result
in more acquisitions being accounted for as asset
acquisitions across all industries, particularly real
estate, pharmaceutical, and oil and gas. Application
of the changes would also affect the accounting for

disposal transactions.

Lotus Bakeries expects that the amendments to the
above described IFRS standards do not have a mate-

rial impact on the consolidated financial statements
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The following new standards and amendments have

been issued, but are not mandatory for the first time

for the financial year beginning 1 January 2020 and
have not been endorsed by the European Union:

- Amendments to [AS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements: Classification of Liabilities as current
or non-current’ (effective 1 January 2022), affect
only the presentation of liabilities in the statement
of financial position — not the amount or timing
of recognition of any asset, liability income or
expenses, or the information that entities disclose
about those items. They:

* clarify that the classification of liabilities as
curtent or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period and align the wording in all affected
paragraphs to refer to the “right” to defer settle-
ment by at |east twelve months and make explicit
that only rights in place “at the end of the reperting
period” should affect the classification of a
liability;
clarify that classification 1s unaffected by expec-

tations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability; and make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, cther

assets or services

- Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations;
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets as well as Annual Improvements {effective
1 January 2022). The package of amendments
includes narrow-scope amendments to three Stan-
dards as well as the Board's Annual Improvements.
which are changes that clarify the wording or correct
minor consequences, oversights or conflicts be-
tween requirements in the Standards.

+ Amendments to [FRS 3 Business Combinations
update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual
Framewaork fer Financial Reporting without
changing the accounting requirements for
business combinations.

+ Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment prohibit a company from deducting
from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced
while the company is preparing the asset for its
intended use. Instead, a company will recegnise
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or
loss.

» Amendments to |AS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets specify which
costs a company includes when assessing

whether a contract will be loss-making.

Annual Improvements te IFRS standards
make minor amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of IFRS, IFRS @ Financal Instruments,
IAS 41 Agriculture and the lllustrative Examples
accompanying [FRS 16 Leases.

Lotus Bakeries 13

- Amendments to IFRS 9, |AS 39, IFRS 7, {FRS 4
and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2 (effective 1 January 2021). These
amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting after the reform of an interest
rate benchmark, including its replacement with
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021, with earher applcation permitted.

2.2 Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements cormprise the
financial statements of Lotus Bakeries NV and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 'Group’) All
material balances and transactions within the Group

have been eliminated.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities contrelled by the Group. The
Group has control aver an investee when it is exposed
to, or has the right to, variable returns arising from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidation scope as from the
date that the Group obtains control until the date

such control ceases.
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Acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for according
to the acquisition method. The financiat statements
of the subsidiaries have the same financial year as
the Group and are prepared in accordance with the

accounting principles of the Group.

Alist of subsidiaries of the Group is disclosed in the

relevant notes.

Liabilities related to put options granted to
non-contro"ing interests

The Group granted put options to third parties with
non-contrelling interests in a subsidiary, with these
opticns giving the halders the right to sefl part or all
of their investment in the subsidiary. These financial
liabilities do not bear interest. In accordance with 1AS
32, when non-contrelling interests hold put options
enabling them to selt their investrment in the Group,
a financial liabihty 1s recognised in an amount cor-
responding to the present value of the estimated
exercise price. This financial hability is included in
the ather non-current liabilities. The counterpart
of this liability is a write-down of the value of the
non-cantrolling interest underlying the option. The
difference between the value of the non-controlling
interest and the fair value of the liability is allocated
to the retained earnings (Group share), which are

included in shareholders’ equity.

This itemn is adjusted at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the estimated exercise price of
the option and the carrying amount of non-centralling
interests. |f the option matures without exercising, the
liability is written off against non-controlling interests

and retained earnings (Group share).

2.4 Use cfestimates

In order to prepare the financial statements in accord-
ance with [FRS, management has to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions which have animpact on

the financial statements and notes.

Estimates made on the reporting date reflect existing
conditions on that date ('For examp|e: market prices,
interest rates and Foreign exchange rates). Though
these estimates are made by management based on
maximum knowledge of ongaing busiress and of the
actions that the Group may undertake, the actual

results may be different.

The assumptions made for measuring geodwill,
intangible assets, post-employment benefits and
financial derivatives are included in notes 6, 7, 18

and 20.
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2.5 Foreign currencies

The Group's reporting currency is the euro.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted
using the exchange rate applicable on the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are converted to the closing rate

an the reporting date.

Financial statements of foreign entities

For foreign enuties using a different functional cur-

rency than the euro:

- assets and liabilities are converted to the eurc using
the exchange rate on the reporting date.

- income statements are converted at annual average

exchange rate.

equity items are converted at the historc exchange

rate.

Translation differences resulting from conversion
of equity into euro using the rate at the end of
the reporting period are recognised as translation
differences under equity. Translation differences
remain in equity up to the disposal of the company
In case of disposal, the deferred cumulative amount
included in equity is included in the results for the

foreign activity in question
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Goodwill from the acquisition of a foreign entity
and possible fair value changes in carrying amount
of the acquired assets and liabilities at the moment
of acquisition, are considered as assets and liabilities
of the foreign activity and are converted using the

closing rate.

The Group has no entities in hyper-inflationary

econamies,

Exchange rates
The following exchange rates were used in preparing

the finanaial staterments:

CLOSING RATE AVERAGE RATE
2020 2019 2020 2009
EURJCAD 15633 14598 15380 14822
EURJCHF 10802 10854 10709 1
EUR/CLP | 8753500 B3amiso| 9os9ses| 792.2603
EURJCNY 80225 78205 78975 7737
EUR{CZK 262420 254080 | 264978 256588
EUR/GBP 08990 08508 | 0889 08759
EURJKRW | 1336.0000 | 12962800 | 13502375 | 13031692
EUR/PLN 45597 ae8| 44680 42990
EUR/SEK 100343 104468 104ms| 10582
FUR/USD 1220 11234 11470 11195
EURfZAR 18.0219 57773 18913 161701

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets which are acquired separately are
measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are measured at cost less cumulative
amortisation and impairment. The residual value of

intangible assets is assumed to be zero.

Intangible assets acquired upon acquisition of a sub-
sidiary or as a result of the acquisition of a customer
portfolio, are recognized separately in the balance

sheet at their estimated fair value at acquisition date.

Costs for internally generated goodwill are receg-

nised as costs in the income statement when they occur.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with a finite hfe are amortised on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
and reviewed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
Amortisation begins when the intangible asset is ready

forits ntended use.

Intangible assets with indefinite usefut lives are not
amortised but tested for impairment annually or
whenever there is 3 valid reason to do so. The indefinite
life is re-assessed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life centinues to be supportable. f not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made

prospectively.
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The investments in software and licences are amortised
over a peniad of three to five years.

The brands acquired in acquisitions or the value of
the customer portfolios obtained through acquisition
are amortised on a straight-line basis ever a maximum
period of ten years, except when the brand can be

regarded as having an indefinde life.

Goodwill

Goodwilt arising from a business combination s initially
measured at cost (i.e. the positive difference between
the cost of the business combination and the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
lisbilities and contingent liabilities). After initial recog-
nition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated

impairment losses, if any

Goodwillis tested for impairment annually or more
often if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying ameunt may have been impaired. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goedwill acquired
in a business combination is, fram acquisition date
onwards, allocated to each of the Group's cash gen-
erating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or

liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is valued at cost
less cumulative depreciation and impairment. Cost
includes the purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating

in the manner intended by management.

The cost of self-produced assets includes direct
material costs, direct labour costs and a proportional

part of the production overhead.

If the various parts of a tangible asset have different
useful lives, they are depreciated according to their

respective useful lives.

The depreciation methods, residual value, as well as
the useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment

is reassessed and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Subsequent expenditure

Costs of maintenance and repair of Property, Plant
and Equipment are capitalised if the cost can be
measured reliably and the expenditure will resultin a
future economic benefit. All other costs are recagnised

as operating charges when they occur.

Depreciation
Deprecistion s calculated on a straight-line basis over

the estimated useful lves of the assets.

Depreciation of an asset begins when the asset is

ready forits intended use.

Useful life is assigned as follows:

Buildings and warehouses 25-30 years
Plant and equipment 15 years
Basic machines 20-25 years
Common machines, toals 10-15 years
Furniture 15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5years
Passenger vehicles 4-5years
Trucks 10 years

Land 1s not depreciated given that it has an undefined

useful life

2.8 Leasing

A lease exists if the contract canveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. A right—uf—use
assetis rECngnised for this in the balance sheet as
well as a debt equal to the future lease payments for
all leases except those with a term of 12 months or

less or an underlying asset lower than ELUR 5,000.

The Greup recognises right-of-use assets as
nen-current assets on the date of first use and they
are valued at cost price. Cast price comprises the
sum of recognised lease liabilities and initial direct
costs rmunus lease discounts received. These assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease

term and are subject to impairment.
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Lease liabilities are measured at the discounted value
of future lease payments over the lease term in ques-
tion. This calculation assumes a market interest rate
where the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot

be determined.

2.9 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at fair vakue when
it is probable that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attached to the
grant. If the grant is related to a cost item, the grant is
systematically recognised as income over the periads
required to attribute these grants to the costs which
they are intended to compensate, YWhen the grant is
related to an asset, it is presented in the balance sheet
deducted from the asset. Grants are recognised in

income net of the depreciation of the related asset.

2.0 Impairment of non-current
gssets

For the Group's non-current assets, other than
deferred tax assets, the Group assesses, at each
reporting date, whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. I any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
anindividual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or

cash generating unit’s fair value fess costs of disposal
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and the value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

When the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount, an IMpairment lass is recognised as an oper-

ating charge in the income statement.

Reversal of impairments

Impairments for financial assets normally held by the
Group until maturity or receivables are reversedifa
subsequent ingrease in their net asset value can be
objectively associated with an event arising after the

recording of the loss.

A previously recognised impairment for othet assets
is reversed where there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount. An increase in the carrying amount of an
asset resulting from the reversal of an impairment
cannot be higher than the carrying amount (after
depreciation) that would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

An impairment loss recognised on goodwill is never

reversedin a subsequent period.

2.11 Financial assets availiable
forsale

Financial assets available for sale include shares in
companies in which the Group does not exercise

contral nor significant influence.

Financial assets are initially measured at cost. The cost
includes the fair value of the compensation provided

and acquisition costs associated with the investment

After the initial recognition, the financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
directly recognised in a separate component of
other comprehensive income. For listed companies,
the share price is the best estimate of the fair value.
Investments for which no fair value can be deter-

mined, are recognised at historical cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
Objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment

below its cost.

If the financial asset is sold or an impairment loss
is recognised, the cumulative profits or [osses rec-
ognised in equity are transferred ta profit or lass. An
impairment loss on a financial asset available for sale
is not reversed through the income statement, unless

it includes a debt instrument
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2.12 Other long-teerm receivables
Long-term receivables are valued at their actual net
value based on an average market interest rate in

accordance with the useful life of the receivable.

2.12 Inventories
Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale are

measured at purchase price on a FIFO basis.

Finished products are measured at the standard
manufactuning cost price. This includes, in addition
to direct praduction and material costs. a propertional
part of the fixed and variable overhead costs based
on the normal production capacity. If the purchase
price or the manufacturing price exceeds the net
realisable value, the stock is measured at the lower

net realisable value.

The net reahsable value 1s defined as the estmated
selling price In the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated cost of completicm and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.14 Trade receivables and other
amounts receivable

Trade receivables and other amounts receivable are
measured at their nominal value less impairment,

if any.

Impairments are recognised in the operating results if
it becomes probable that the Group will not be able

to CO"GCT a]l outstanding amounts.

At each reporting date, the Group estimates the
impairment by evaluating all outstanding amounts
individually. An impairment is recognised in the results

of the period in which it was identified as such.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include liquid assets and
bank balances {current and deposit accounts). In general,
investments are held untl the expration date. Profits
and losses are recognised in the income statement

when the investment is realized or impaired.

For the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
include cash and bank balances. Possible negative cash
is recognised as short-terminterest-bearing loans and

borrowings with credit institutions.

2.16 Non-cursrent assets

{or disposal groups) held for sale

and discontinued operations

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation
if it is a component of an entity that either has been
disposed of, or 1s classified as held for sale. and:

represents a major fine of business or geographical

area of operations;

is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with & view to

resale,

A non-current asset (or a disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount will be recov-
ered principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.

A non-current asset (or a disposal group) classified as
held for sale 1s recognised at the lower of the carrying

amount and the fair value less cost to sell,

Animpairment test is performed on these assets at

the end of each reporting date.
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2.17 Share capital and treasury
shares

For the purchase of treasury shares, the amount paid,
including any directly attributable costs, is recognised
as a change in this section, Treasury shares purchased

are considered as a reduction in equity.

208 Inlerest B anng Bnoat e debts
All interest-bearing financial debts are initially
recognised at fair value less direct attributable
transaction costs, After initial recognition, the inter-
est-bearing hnancial debts will be recognised at the
amortised cost price based on the effective interest

rate methed.

This lease liability is recognised as equal to the future
lease payments for all leases except those with a term
of 12 months or less or an underlying asset lower
than EUR 5.000.

Lease liabilities are measured at the discounted value
of future lease payments over the lease term in ques-
tion This calculation assumes a market interest rate
where the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot

be determined.
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2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet if the
Group has abligations {legal or constructive) resulting
from a past event and if tt 15 probable that fulfillment
of these commitments will incur expenses that can

be estimated reliably on reporting date.

No provisions are recagnised for future operating costs.
If the effect of the time value of meney is material,

the provisions are discounted.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when a
formal, detailed restructuring plan is approved by
the Group and if this restructuring has either begun

or been announced to the ones concerned.

2.20 Financial derivatives
The Group uses financial derrvatives to lirut nsks from
adverse exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations.

Nao derivatives are used for trading purposes.

Financial derivatives are initially recognised at cost.
After initial recognition, these instruments are
recognised at their fair value. Changes in far value of
the Group's derivatives that do not meet the criteria
of IAS 39 for hedge accounting, are recognised in

the income statement.

The effective portion of the change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments that are identified
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other compre-
hensive income The gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is immediately recognised in the income
statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods
in which the hedged position impacts the income

statement.

Altreqular purchases and sales of financial assets are

recognised on transaction date.

2.21Trade payables and other debts

Trade payables and other debts are recognised
at their nominal value. A financial obligatien is
derecognised once the obligation is fulfilled, settled

or lapsed.

2.22 Dividends

Dividends payable to sharehalders of the Group are
recognised as a liability in the balance sheet in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders of the Group
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2.23 Revenues

Revenues are included in the income statement when
it 1s probable that the Group will receive economic
benefits from the transaction and the revenues can

be measured reliably.

Sale of goods and delivery of services

Revenue is deerned to have been earned when the risks
and rewards of the sale are payable by the purchaser
and any uncertainty has been removed in terms of the
collection of the agreed amount, transaction costs

and any return of the goods.

Financial income

Financial income (interests, dividends, royalties, etc)
are considered to be realised once 1t is probable that
the Group will receive the economic benefits from
the transaction and the revenues can be measured

reliably.
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s A bmpluyee benefits

Pension plans

The Group holds a number of defined contribution
plans. These pension plans are funded by members
of personnel and the employer and are recognised
in the income statement of the reporting period to

which they refer.

In additicn, there is also a defined benefit pension plan

in the subsidiary in Germany and the Netherlands.

There are also previsions in some companies for early
retirement (Belgium) and pension obligations arising
from legal requirements {France). These are classi-
fied as employment benefits of the defined benefit

pension plans.

For the defined benefit pension plans, provisions are
measured by calculating the present value of future

amounts payable to the employees.

Defired benefit costs are dvided into 2 categories:
- Current service cost, past service cost, gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements;

- Net interest expense or income.

The current and past service cost, the net interest
expense, the remeasurement of other bong term per-
sonnel expenses, administrative expenses and taxes
for the reporting period are included in the person-
nel expenses in the statement of profit or loss. The
remeasurement on the net defined benefit llability as
a conseguence of actuarial gains or losses is included
in the statement of comprehensive income as part of

other comprehensive income.

Share-based payment

The stock option plan and the warrant plan allow
employees to acquire shares in the company at rel-
atively advantageous conditions. The exercise price
of the option and warrant is equal to the average
stock market closing price of the Lotus Bakeries share
during the thirty calendar days preceding the date of
offering. A personnel cost is recognised for options
and warrants granted to employees as part of the
stock option plan or warrant plan. The cost is deter-
mined based on the fair value of the stock options
and warrants on the grant date and, together with an
equal increase in equity, is recogrised over the vest-
ing period, ending on the date when the employees
receive full right to the options. When the eptions
or warrants are exercised, equity is increased by the
amount of the reverues. The final warrants awned by
executives and senior management were exercised

duning the first half of 2019

Bonuses

Bonuses for employees and management are caleu-
lated based on key financial objectives and individual
objectives. The estimated amount of the bonuses is
recognised as a charge for the financial year based

on an estimate on the reporting date.
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2.25Income tax

Income taxes in the result of the reporting period
include current and deferred taxes. Both taxes are
recognised in the income statement except if they
have been recognised directly in other compre-
hensive income. If so, these taxes are also directly

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current taxes include the amount of tax payable
on the taxable eamings for the period calculated at
the tax rate applicable on the reporting date. They
also include adjustments of fiscal liabil ties for pre-
vious years. In line with IAS 12846 ‘Income Taxes..
management assesses on a periodic basis the posi-
tions taken in tax declarations in respect of items
subject to interpretation in the tax legislation, and
records - if necessary- additional income tax liabili-
ties based on the expected amounts payable to the
tax authenties. The evaluation 1s made for all fiscal

periods still subject to controls by the authorities

Dreferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet
methad and result mainly from temporary differences
between the carrying amount of both assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and their respective
taxable base. Deferred taxes are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at reporting date. Deferred
taxes are recognised at their nominal value and are

not discounted.
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Deferred tax assets from deductible temporary
differences and unused tax loss carry forwards are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised

The carrying ameount of deferred tax assets 1s reas-
sessed at each reporting date and reduced when it
15 no longer probable that the related tax savings can
be generated. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profits allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabihities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable night to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

2.26 Earnings per share

The Group calculates the ordinary profit per share on
the basis of the weighted average of the number of
outstanding shares during the period. For the diluted
profit per share, the dilutive effect of stock options

during the period is also taken into account.

2.27 Seament reporting

Group turnover is centralised around a number
of products that are all included in the traditional
and natural snacking segment For these products,
the Group 1s erganised according to geographical
regions for sales, production and internal reporting.
As aresult, segment reporting presents the geo-

graphical markets.

The results of a segment include the income and
charges directly generated by a segment. To this is
added the portion of the income and charges that can
be reasonably attributed to the segment. Interseg-
ment price-fixing 15 defined based on the ‘at arm'’s

length’ principle

The assets and liabilities of a segment are reported
excluding taxes and after deduction of depreciation,

impairments and valuation allowances.

Lotus Bakeries
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3. Segment reporting by geographical region

Seament reporting by geographical region (2020)

For the purpose of sales, production and internal reporting, the Group is classified
according to geographical regions. The regions presented in the segment reporting,
which are based on the internal reparting system, are composed as follaws:

- Belgium: sales by Sales Office Belgium and intra-group sales by factories in Belgum
- France: sales by Sales Office France and intra-group sales by factories in France
- The Netherlands: sales by Sales Office Netherlands and intra-group sales by

factories in the Netherlands

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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- UK: sales by Sales Office UK, Natural Balance Foeds, Urban Fresh Foods and
Kiddylicious, and the production of Lotus South Africa Manufacturing

- Other:sales from Belgium to countries without own Sales Office and by own Sales
Offices in Germany, Austria, Switzerland, the Czech Republic/Slovakia, United
States. Spain, ltaly, China, South Korea, Sweden/Finland plus production in Sweden.

Sales batween the various segments are carried out &t arm's length.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

ELIMINATIONS «

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR BELGIUM FRANCE  METHERLANDS UK OTHER Cc%"»ﬁr?fé‘.g TOTAL

TURNOVER

Sales to external customers 161104 86913 86.307 147091 181.874 - 663,289

Inter-seqment sales 152619 12.66% 3849 10232 1148 {160,517)

Total turnaver 293723 99,582 90,156 157,323 183,022 {160,517} 663,299

RESULTS

Segment result REBIT 40,850 6969 15396 18.058 25730 LAl .4

Non-recurrent operating result (2689 {158) 89 {1312 {345) (4.593)

Segment result EBIT . - - . 106,521

Financial result . . (3.004)

Profit for the year before taxes - - - . 103.517

Toxes (20972)

Result after taxes - - - - - 82,545

ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets 149,088 8,552 101.349 231475 97393 3732 622 840
Segment assets 149,088 8,552 101,349 231475 97293 31.732 619,482
Unallocated assets 3351

Deferred tares 3351
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YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 CONTIMUING OPERATIONS
ELIMINATIONS +
INTHOUSANDS OF EUR BELGIUM FRANCE NETHERLANDS [UES CTHER CCOOR'\:S\R&EE TOTAL
Current assets 40,439 13723 15134 33,739 23,264 4 755 221387
Segment assets 40439 13723 15134 33739 23,264 4755 131.054
Unallocated assets. 90333
VAT recervables 5930
Income tax receivables 3042
Cashand cash equivalents 81.261
Total assets 189,527 22,275 115,483 265,214 120,557 36,487 844,227
Nan-current lsbiliives 1703 796 51 - 639 1092 251,841
Seqment liabilities 1,703 796 517 - 639 1.092 4747
Unallocated labulities: 257094
Deferred tax liabifities 57195
Interest-bearng loans and barrawings 198,156
Other non-current liabilives 1143
Current habilities 37042 14,418 3531 25272 17582 13.399 148.642
Segment hiabilities 37042 4418 9531 25272 17582 19.39% 123,244
Unallocated liabilities; 25398
VAT payables 145
Taxpayables o 12,701
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 12,552
Total liabilities i 38.745 15,214 10,048 25,272 18,223 20,491 410,483
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
Capital expenditure:
Tengble fived assets 637 755 1837 2031 1331 1224 18,614
Incangible fixed assets - - - - W 1378 975
Depreciation - 9653 1100 2816 889 4544 198% 21,000

Increase | tdecrease} in amuunis wnitten off stocks contracts
In progress and trade debtors 1025 198 132 468 740 48 210
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Segmentreporting by geographical region (2019)

For the purpose of sales, production and mternal reporting, the Group is classified - UK sales by Sales Office UK, Natural Balance Foods, Urban Fresh Foods
according to geegraphical regions. The regions presented in the segment reporting. and Kiddylicious, and the production of Lotus South Africa Manufacturing
which are based on the internal reporting system, are composed as follows: - Other: sales from Belgium ta countnes without own Sales Office and by own
- Belgum: sales by Sales Office Belgium and intra-group sales by factories in Sales Offices in Germany, Austria, Switzerland, the Czech Republic/Slovakia,
Belgium United States, Spain, ltaly, China, South Korea, Sweden/Finland plus production
- France: sales by Sales Office France and intra-group sales by factories in France inSweden
- The Netherlands: sales by Sales Office Netherlands and intra-group sales
by factories in the Netherlands Sales between the various segments are carried out at arm's length.
YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ELIMINATIONG »
IN THOUSANDS GF EUR BELGIUM FRANCE  NETHERLANDS UK OTHER oA TOTAL
TURNOQVER
Sales to external customers 154722 76,439 87482 137557 156,537 - 612,137
Inter-segment sales 18,073 13.28 3520 8768 751 {144.393)
Total turnoves 272,795 89.720 91,002 146,325 157,288 (144,393) £12,737
RESULTS
Segment result REBIT 18537 380 15.506 13.774 24.650 6.623 102,891
Non-recurrent operating resylt (108) (3.988) 1804 {2090
Segment result EBIT 100.59%
Financial resuft (2514}
Prot for the year before taves 98,086
Taxes (22317
Result after taxes 75,769
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets 146,703 8663 02114 252769 99,291 29076 641122
Segment assets 146,703 B.663 02N4 252.769 95,291 29,076 £38.617
Unallocated assets. 2305

Deferred taxes 2505
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ELIMINATIONS »
INTHOUSANDS OF EiR BELGIUM FRANCE  NETHERLANDS LK OTHER cc%n:gng TOTAL
Current assets 37085 13.679 14947 36151 18,477 4120 171,507
Segment assets 37085 13.679 14947 36151 18,477 4720 125,059
tnallocated assets 46.448
VAT recevables £.280
Income tax recewables 1075
Cashand cash equivalents 40.093
Total assets 183,788 22,342 17,061 288,920 17.768 33,796 812,629
Non-current liabilines 1717 391 762 - 9 2,676 239.584
Segment liabilities 1717 591 762 - 59 2676 6337
Unaliocated habilties: 23317
Deferred tax habilities 50.737
interest-beaning loans and borrowings 158,010
Cther non-current labylives 24.500
Current liabilities 39786 9968 1.078 27108 16158 8.007 170.568
Segment habilities 25786 9968 n078 27108 16158 18,007 122,105
Unallocated habitities 48,463
VAT payables 234
Tax payables 1.630
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 36,579
Total liabilities 41,503 10,559 11,840 17,108 16,749 20,683 410,152
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
Capital expenditure:
Tangible fed assets 10,363 787 2181 1437 29059 165 45483
Intangible hxed assets 8 - - . - 1184 1152
Depreciation 3139 1026 2675 nz 2588 1614 12754

Increase {{decrease} n amqunts written off stocks. cantracts in progress
and trade debtors 961 289 459 52 360 4 2135
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4. Acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries

In 2019, Lotus Bakeries acquired control of Lotus Seuth Africa Manufacturing
Ltd., the company which manufactures BEAR products. The integration of the
production activities followed the successful commergial integration in 2015 which
paved the way for the acquisition of BEAR, a brand that stands for healthy, pure
fruit snacks. BEAR anly uses gently baked, freshly picked seasenal fruits. The

products are free from added sugars, concentrate, preservatives and stabilisers.

In December 2019, the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities was deter-
mined in order to calculate provisionally the gocdwill arising from this. Further
analyses in 2020 confirmed that no adjustment was required to the fair value.
Thus, the final value of the acquired assets and liabilities was calculated over a

period of twelve months fellowing the acquisition date.

The total purchase price was EUR 46.5 million, broken down as set out below:

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR FAIR VALUE
Purchase price 45,532
Property, plant and equipment 3308
Stocks 1.005
Trade and other recevables 473
Cash and cash equivalents 73
Trade anc other payables (n4)
Tax payables {130)
TOTALMET ASSETS 4,315
GOGDWILL 42.217
Translation ditferences 2020 {4.329)

Goodwill 2020 37.988

Annuvat Report 2020

The goodwill of EUR 42.2 million arising from the acquisition relates to a variety
of components. With this acquisition. Lotus Bakeries set up a vertical integration to
achieve greater quality control of BEAR production activities and boost flexibility
for new preduct development. There is also direct aceess to suppliers of fresh
fruitin the Ceres valley. The results of Lotus South Africa Manufacturing Ltd. are

included in the consolidation as from June 2019.
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5. Tangible assets

Tangible assets are purchased by and are the full property of Lotus Bakeries. This

includes land and bulldings, mathinery and office equipment. The right-of-use

assets arising from the new IFRS 16 Leases standard are an exception to this. The

tangible assets are unencumbered with the exception of the nctes included in 32.3.
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In 2020, EUR 18.8 million were invested in property, plant and egquipment, the

majority in relation to the new Biscoff* Sandwich Cookie line in Lembeke. Further

investments were made in the expansion of capacity at the BEAR factory in South

Africa and the factory in the United States.

FURNITURE.

LAND  MACHIERY  EQUIPENT i
INTHOUSANDS OF EUR EUILD@%E EQUIPN:‘ER‘? VEHICAFEg CONST?I%% TOTAL
On31December 2020
Acquisition cost
At the end of the preceding year .o 319943 4.4 9448 524,521
Acgusinon during the year 3228 11,389 865 3332 18.814
Sales and disposals (18) (581} (489) (1.088)
Transfers from one heading to another 309 6092 354 {6.755)
Acguisition duning the year leases standard 1704 6 1872 3.582
Sales and disposals leases standard @nn (5} {814) (2936)
Translation differences (3924 (1.907) (187) (58 (6.075)
Total acquisition cost 170,199 334937 5.5 5,967 536,818
Depreciation and amounts written down
At the end of the preceding year 49.118) (194.487) {16.374) {150) (260,729
Depreciation dunng the year {4,328) (1.421) {1.032) 16.782)
Sales and disposals 18 567 446 1.031
Depreciation leases standard {1.403) {41y (1840) (3.284)
Sales and disposals leases standard 751 ? 692 1445
Translation differences {78) (235) (8) 1 317
Total depreciation and amounts
wtitten down (54.756) {205.615} (1816 (149) (278,636)
NET BOOK VALUE 115,443 129,322 1599 5,818 158,182

During 2020 no newly granted capital grants were
received and kEUR 53 of capital grants were taken into
the income statement, giving at year end a remaining
balance of kEUR 946, which is deducted from the
net book value as reported in the above tables of

movements.

INVESTMENT GRANTS
0On 31 December 2020 2019

Atthe end of
the preceding year (1.000} (1.060)

Taken mto the ncome
statement 54 40

At the end of the year {94¢6) (1,000)
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LAND MAC : 1er ET!T\? OF}E \UCRENEIL%TPE TJSNSSE
INTHOUSANDS OF EUR walﬁé? EQUIPMAE':IT M\f&ﬂé&% CONST?%; TOTAL
On 31 December 2019
Acquisition cost
At the end of the preceding year 19,754 287,074 16798 40516 464,142
Acquisition dunng the year 332 5277 1.746 35,184 45483
Sales and disposals [333) {334) (276} (1042
Transfers fram one heading to another 39392 271024 467 (66.882) 0
Amendment to accounting principles
(IFRS 16 lesses standard) 6447 19 5114 11780
Translation dfferences 50 {55) 84 630 709
Acquisition through business combinanions 2,581 688 180 3449
Total acquisition cost mm? 119,943 Hn4 9,448 524 521
Depreciation and amounts written down
At the end of the preceding year {45.168) {(184.902) (14,01 {164) {244,245)
Depreciation during the year (3.415) {9.870) (878) (14.163)
Sales and disposals 53 223 144 420
Amendment ta accounting prineiples
{IFRS 16 leases standard) {1.303) {4n {1.604) (2.948)
Trandlation differences 143 172 {6) 14 327
Acquisssbion through business combinations (26) (70) (19 ms)
Total depreciation and amounts
written down 49.718) {194,487) (16,574) (150} (260,729)
NET BOOK VALUE 121,299 125.455 7,740 9,298 163,793

Annual Repare 2020

6. Goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill at the end of 2020
is EUR 216.5 million,

For sales, production and internal reperting, the
Group is organised inte geagraphic regiens (see
also geographic segment information). The seg-
ments consist of underlying business units. These
business units represent the lowest level within the

Group at which the gaodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. These business units are the

cash generating units to which geodwill is allocated.

The net carrying value of goodwill has been allocated

to the various independent cash generating units

as follows:

Cash flow-generating unit Amount kKEUR
Netherlands {Koninklike Pegnenburg) 17151
Spain (Lotus Bakerres Fspans S.L) 1695
Sweden {AB Annas Pepparkakor) 6109
Customer Brand Business (Biscutene

Willems BY and B W1 BV} 20773
Lotus Bakerles Korea Co Ltd 5,285
Matural Foods 161472
Total 116,485
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The change for the year is due to conversion
differences for the pound sterling and the South
Alrican rand.

INTHQUSANDS QF EUR 2020 2019

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of
previows year 229.365 17763

Acauisiions of subsidianes 44355

Effect of movements in foreign

exchange rates {12,880) 73N

Balance at end of year 216,485 129,345

Goodwill, representing approximately 26% of the
total assets of Lotus Bakeries at 31 December 2020,
is tested for impairment every year (or whenever there
is a specific reason to do so) by comparing the carry-
ing value of each cash generating unit (CGU) with
its recoverable amount. The recoverable ameunt of a
cash generating unit is determined on the basis of the

calculated value in use.

The value in use is determined as the present value
of expected future cash flows based on the current
long-term planning of the Group. The discourt rate
used in determining the present value of expected
future cash flows is based on a weighted average cost
of capital (WACC). The impairment test for goodwi"
1s based on & number of critical judgements, estimates

and assumptions

The assumpticns are consistent and realistic for the
six cash generating units, which are mainly located in
Europe and the UK:

- Revenue and gross profit margin: revenue and gross
profit margin reflect management's expectations
based on past expenence and taking into account
the nisks specific to the reportable business unit,

- The first year of the model is based on the budget for
the year, the budget is taking into acceunt historical
results and is management's best estimate of the free
cash flow outlock for the current year.

- In years two to five of the model, free cash flows are
based en Lotus Bakeries' long-term plan. The Jong-
term plan of Lotus Bakeries is prepared country by
country, based on realistic internal plans that take
into account the specific market situation and the

past‘

Cash flows beyond the first five years are extra-
polated by applying a growth rate to free cash flows,
lying between 1% and 3%.

Projections are discounted at the weighted average

cost of caprtal after tax, which lies between 4.3%
and 6.5%. The pre-tax discount rate is calculated
by dividing the discount rate after tax by one minus
the applicable tax rate. This result is not materially
different from an iterative calculation method as
described in |AS 36.
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End 2020, Lotus Bakeries has completed its annual
impairment test on goodwill and concluded from this
that no further impairment allowance is necessary. Lotus
Bakeries believes all of its estimates to be reasonable:
they are consistent with the internal reporting and

reflact management’s best estimates.

Asa part of the valuation test, Lotus Bakeries carried
out a sensitivity analysis for important assumptions
used, including the weighted average capital costs
and long term growth percentage. Here, a fall in the
fong-term growth percentage by 100 basis points
and an increase in the weighted average capital costs
before tax by 100 basis points were applied. A change
in the estimates used, as described above, does not

lead to a potential material impairment.

Adthough Lotus Bakeries believes that its assessments,
assumptions and estimates are suitable, actual results
may differ from thesa estimates in the event of changed

assumpticns and conditions.
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7. Intangible assets

Intangible assets refer to brands, software and an

acquired customer portfolic.

The brands relate to:

- the Peijnenburg brand
- the Annas brand

- the Nakd brand

- the BEAR brand

- the Dinosaurus brand
- the Kiddylicious brand

The value of these brands was estabhshed as part
of the valuation at falr value of the asset and liability

components upon first consolidation.

As the Peijnenburg brand serves as the base brand
in the Netherlands, it is not amortised. In accordance

with the valuation rules, its fair value is tested annually,

using the DCF method.

The Annas brand is used as the base brand for the
Nordic region and as the base brand for its pepparkakor
products outside the Nordic regien. This brand is not
heing amortised. Here too, the farr value is tested
annually using the DCF method. The activity in the
Nordic region plus the pepparkakor activity outside
this region are defined as a cash generating unit. This
cash generating unitis part of the segment ‘Other’

innote 3.

In 2012 the intellectual property rights in the Dino-
saurus brand were acquired. Based on an analysis of
all relevant factors, there is no fareseeable limit to the
period of time over which this brand is expected to
generate cash flows. The Dinosaurus brand has been
assigned indefinite useful life and therefore is not

amortised.

In 2015, the Nakd brand was acquired as part of the
acquisition of Natural Balance Foods. Nakd is loved
by customers for its delicious. innovative products
made from 100% natural ingredients with no added
sugar. They are dairy, wheat and gluten free. Since
N3kd is the base brand of Natural Balance Foods
in the UK and elsewhere, it is not amortised. In
accordance with the valuation rules, its fair value is
tested annually, using the DCF methed. Accordingly,
the sale of N3kd products in the UK and elsewhere

is treated as a cash generating unit.

At the end of 2015, the BEAR brand was acquired
as part of the acquisition of Urban Fresh Feeds. The
BEAR brand is the market leader in the UK for pure
fruit snacks for children. Since BEAR is the base brand
of Urban Fresh Foods in the UK and elsewhere, it is
net amortised. In accordance with the valuation rules,
its fair value 1s tested annually, using the DCF method.
Accordingly. the sale of BEAR productsin the UK and

elsewhere is treated as a cash generating unit.

AnnusiRepert 2020

In 2018, the Kiddylicious brand was acquired as part
of the acquisition of Kiddylicious. Delicious, nutri-
tious, portion-controlled snacks for growing babies,
toddlers and pre-schaolers are marketed under this
brand. Since Kiddylicious is the base brand in the UK
and elsewhere, it is not amortised. In accordance with
the valuation rules, its fair value is tested annually, using
the DCF method. Accordingly, the sale of Kiddylicious
products in the UK and elsewhere is treated as s cash

generating unit,

At year-end 2020, the Group tested the value of
these brands for possible impairment. Taking into
account the assumptions used, the value in use of the
unit exceeds its carrying amount and no impairment

loss was recognised.
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The main judgements, assumptions and estimates are:

- Revenue and gross profit margin: revenue and
gross profit margin reflect management's expec-
tations based on past experience and taking into
account the risks specific to the cash generating
unit.

- The first year of the model is based on the budget
for the year, taking into account historical results
and is management’s best estimate of the free cash

flow outlook for the current year.

In years two to five of the model, free cash flows are
based on Lotus Bakeries' long-term plan. The long-
term plan of Lotus Bakeries is prepared country by
country, based on internal plans that take into
account the specific market situation and the past.
- Cash flows beyond the first five years are extra-
polated by applying a growth rate to free cash flows,
lying between 1% and 3%.
- Projections are discounted at the weighted
average pre-tax cost of capiral, which lies between
4.3% and 4.9%. The pre-tax discount rate is
calculated by dividing the discount rate after tax
by ane minus the applicable tax rate. This result is
not materially different from an iterative calculation
method as described in [AS 36.

As apart of the valuation test, Lotus Bakeries carned
out a sensitivity analysis for important assumptions
used, including the weighted average capital costs
and long term growth percentage. Here, a fall in the
long-term growth percentage by 100 basis peints and
anincrease in the weighted average capital costs before
tax by 100 basis points were applied. A change n the
estimates used, as included above, does not lead to 2

potential material impairment.

Although Lotus Bakeries believes that its assessments,
assumptions and estimates are suitable, actual results
may differ from these estimates in the event of changed

assumptions and conditions.

Software relates mainly to the capitalised external and
internal costs connected with the further rollout of
the ERP information system SAP across the Lotus
Bakeries Group.

The portfolio concerns Spanish out-of -home customers
purchased in 2011.

Lotus Bakeries

n
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INDEFINITE CERMNITE
LIFE LIFE CUSTOMER

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR BRANDS BRANDS SOFTWARE PORTFOLIG TOTAL
On 31 December 2020
Acquisition cost
Ar the end of the preceding year 140,757 4627 1.781 1.030 158,195
Acquisttions dunng the year 1693 - 1663
Trandztion differences (357 (n - {3.534)
Total acquisition cost 137,240 4,627 13.457 1,030 156,354
Depreciations and amounts written down
At the end of the preceding year (4.627) {10,018} {841 {15.486)
Depreciation during the year {813) (103) (916)
Translation differences 4 3}
Total depreciation and amounts written down - {4,627) {10.817) {744) (16,388)
NETBOCK VALUE 137.240 - 2,640 85 139,966

INDEFINITE DEFINITE

LIFE LIFE CUSTOMER

M THOUSANDS OF EUR BRANDS BRANDS SCFTWARE PORTFOLIO TOTAL
On 31 December 2018
Acquisition cost
Atthe end of the preceding year 137489 4627 10578 1030 153,724
Acquisitions durng the year 1162 1162
Translation differences 3268 n 3279
Total acquisition cost 140,757 4,627 n7m8 1,030 158,195
Depreciation and amounts written dowh
At the end of the preceding year - (4.627) (9.463) (74 {14.837)
Depreciation during the year - (550) (54) (644)
Translabon differences - (5) {5}
Total depreciation and amounts written down - (4.627} (10,018) {841) (15.486)
NETBOOK VALUE 140,757 - 1,763 189 142,709
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8. Deferred taxes

D - . CHARGEDf
eferred tax assets are included for the companies ON CREDITEDTO CHARGED CHARGED] On
. ZIDECEMBER THE INCORME CREDITEL TO CREDITED EXCHANGE I1OECEMBER
which have & luss at the end of the year. The recag- INTHOUSANDS OF EUR 00 STATEMENT EQUITY  ACGUISITION  OIFFERENCES 07
nition of these deferred tax assets is supported by Property, plant and equipment
profit expectations in the foreseeable future. andintangible assets {56.651) (Z379) . - 1092 {57938}
Inventories 373 (26} - - 3 350
Pension habilities 767 126 52) - {1} 800
Taxeffect of tax loss carry-
forwards 2.002 ® - - (2000 8,794
Provisions {2.081) 52 - - & (2018)
Derwative financial inseruments 582 (370) 36 . - 248
Cther {244} (3.752) 23 36 {143) (4.080)
Total deferred tax (48,232} {6,357) (33) 36 T42 (53,844)
CHARGED!
ON CREDITED TQ CHARCELY CHARGLLY oN
31DECEMBER THEINCOME CREDATED TO CREDITED EXCHANGE 1 DECEMER
INTHCQUSANDS OF EUR 208 STATEMENT EQUITY ACQUISITION DIFFERENCES Pl
Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (47.580) (8.495) - [¢D) 499 (56,650}
tnventones 415 (50 - - § 3
Pension labilities 702 19 44 . - 767
Taxeffect of taxloss carry-
farwards 2239 6,820 . - {57) 5.002
Prowvisions (2.006) {55) - {2.067)
Denvative hinancial instruments {58) 0 310 - - 582
Other (2461) 1673 . 40 4 (14)

Total deferred tax {48,789) 282 356 93 {474) (48,232)
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9. Participations, investments in other companies
and other long-term receivables

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 31-12-2020 37122019

Participating interests 4403 2243

In 2019, Lotus Bakeries set up corporate venture fund FF2032 NV, creating
a platform for investment in promusing brands and growth companies offering
innovative products, technologies or market approaches within the food sector.
In 2020, the fund invested in two businesses that are both in keeping with this

investment focus.

In August 2020, FF2032 NV made an initial investment in Love Brands [nc., an
American company which markets deliciows crunchy corn snacks under the LOVE
Corn name. In December 2021, a minority stake was closed in Partake Foods,
operating in the American market with cookies free from the top eight allergens.
Previously in 2019, FF2032 NV invested in Peter's Yard, a British company that
markets sourdough crackers & crispbreads in the UK. All three businesses in which

the fund has a stake are associated companies of Lotus Bakeries.

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 3112.2020 3-z2-20%
Cash guarantees 442 513
Other long-term recetvables 1 (&)

Total 453 507

annval Report 2020

10. Inventories

MNTHOQUSANDS OF EUR 31-12-2020 3220
Raw matenals and consumables 13418 1419
Work in progress 2340 3038
Goods for resake and finished goods 31.069 30004
Total 46,827 44,461

Valuation allowances of kEUR 2,548 relate mainly to raw materials
{kEUR177), packaging material (kEUR 757}, finished products and goods for
resale (kEUR 1,614). In 2019, valuation allowances ameunted to kEUR 2,236,
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11. Trade receivables and other amounts receivable

The amount of valuation allowances in 2020 is kEUR 162, In 2019 kEUR 140 of
valuation allowances were charged. The trade receivables represent an average

of 48 days of sales outstanding (2019: 47 days).
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12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are balances on bank accounts remunerated at market
conditions The market value of these cash and cash eguivalents is therefore equal

to the carrying value.

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR 31-12-2020 1-12-2019 INTHOUSAKDS OF ELUR 31.12:2020 3-12-201%
Trade receivables 82.856 79,072 Cash and cash equivalents 81.261 40,093
Tax receivables
VAT recenvables 5930 5.280 Total B.261 4009
Income tax receivables 3142 1075
Tatal 9.072 6355
Other amounts receivable 256 172 13. Net financial debt

The other current amounts receivables item includes amongst cthers the proportion

of long-term receivables that are due within one year and empties in custody.

Net financial debt is defined as interest-bearing financial debt less monetary

investments, cash and cash equivalents and treasury shares.

Net financial debt has dropped by kEUR 19.234 compared with the end of the

M ts on valuation allowances of trade receivables: previous financial year due to a very strong operaticnal cash flow.
IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 09 IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 3192-2020 | 3122009
Amounts written off on 1 January 681 611 Non-current interest-bearing liabilities (193.500) {152.003)
Increase of amounts written off 152 140 Short term interest-bearing liablities (9.692) {33.647)
Amounts written off used dunng the year (148) 7% Cash and cash equivalents 81,261 40,093
Amounts written off on 31 December 697 681 Treasury shares N.474 15.866
With regard to trade receivables there are na indicatians that debtors will not meet Mat financial debt excl IFRS 16 leases standard (n0457) (122.65)
their payment obligations MNor are there any customers representing more than IFRS 16 leases standarc (7518} ®53)
10% of the consolidated tur, . k to establsh a
3 nover. IFRS 9 requires Lotus Bakenies I Total a9r3) (38.650)

proviston for expected losses on the recovery of trade receivables. The application
of this IFRS standard has no material impact. More information regarding the
credit nisk is included in the chapter ‘Report of the Board of Directors’in part 1 of
the Lotus Bakeries 2020 annual report.
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14. i1ssued capital

All shares are ordinary shares, registered or dematenalised. The treasury shares

have been purchased as part of the share option plans mentioned in note 24.

Ordinary shares, isswed and fully paid

IN THGUSANDS OF EUR 2020 20°%

On1January 3,591 3,590
Increase . 1
On 31 December 3591 3591

MNumber of ordinary shares

On 1 January 16,013 815733
Increase - 280
On 31 December 816,013 816,013
Less. treasury shares held at 31 December {5.542) (9.681)
Shares outstanding at 31 December 810,471 806,332

Amounts of authorized capital, not issued

"N THOUSANDS GF EUR 1197 942

Structure of shareholdings

Further detalls of the shareholding structure of Lotus Bakeries NV as of 31 Decem-
ber 2020 are contaned inthe Corporate Governance Statement in part 1 of the
2020 annual report of Lotus Bakeries.

Capital risk management

The goal of Lotus Bakeries as far as capital management is concerned 15 to ensure
that Lotus Bakeries can continue to operdte as a going concern in order to generate
areturn for shareholders and provide benefits for other stakeholders. Furthermore,
Lotus Bakeries aims for a capital structure (balance between debt and equity) that
gives it the required financial flexibility to implement its growth strategy. The aim
is to maintain the ratio of net financial debt (defined as interest-bearing financial
debt less monetary investments, cash equivalents and treasury shares) to recurring
operating cash flow (REBITDA) at what 15 considered as a normal heaithy level

in the financial market.

Annua. Repore 2020

15. Dividends

INTHCOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 259
Dividend paymentsin

Grass dividend per ordinary share (EUR) 3200 2900
Number of ordinary shares 816,013 816013
Gross dividend on ordinary shares 2602 23664
Proposed dividend per ordinary shave (EUR) 35.50 3200
Gross dvidend on ordinary shares 28968 26012

The Board of Directors will propose to the Ordinary General Meeting of Share-
holders of 18 May 2021 to pay a gross dividend of EUR 35.50 per share for 2020
compared to EUR 32.00 per share in 2019.

This amount is not recognised as a debt on 31 December.

16. Treasury shares

Treasury shares purchased as part of the stock option plans as declared in note

24 are subtracted from equity.

INTHOUSANDS CF EUR 2020 319

On1 January 15.866 1.406
Purchased during the year - 5.625
Sold during the year {4.392) {1165}
On 31 December n474 15.866

Mumber of treasury shares

On1 January 9,681 9740
Purchasec during the year - 2250
Sold during the year 4.139) (2309)
On31 December 5.542 .681
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17. Interest-bearing liabilities

DUE DUE DUE
WITHIN BETWEEN AFTER
INTHOUSANDS OF EUR "YEAR  °TCSYEARS 5 YEARS TOTAL
Non-current financial debts, excluding lease habilities, with an initial maturity of more
) L Naon-cursent interest-bearing
than | yearincreased by kEUR 41,497 The current interest-bearing liabilties decreased {abilibes . 122003 30,000 152,003
by kEUR 23,955 The currency of all non-current interest-bearing liabiles is euro. Current Current interest bearing
interest-bearing liabilities are mainly expressed in euro. The interest due on inter- habilities 3047 - : e
est-bearing liabilities at the end of 2020 amounts to kEUR 8.827. The majonty Total interest-bearing
. . . liabilities 2019 33,647 122,00% 30,000 185,650
of this (kEUR 6,471) relates to a period of more than one year, but less than five e
. . IFRS 1 93, 6.007 - 8939
years, The interest due within one year or after five years amounts to kEUR 1,840 6 leases standard L5
and kEUR 576 respectively. Total an 3t December 2019 6579 128010 30000 194,589
Interests due on nen-current
Allinterest-bearing liabilities were contracted at market conditions and therefore interest-baaring habilities 1823 4746 529 7094

the carrying amount approximates the fair value.

The interests due on the loans with variable interest rate are calculated at the

actual interest rate.
DUE DUE DUE

WITHIN BETWEEN AFTER
IN THOUSANDS OF EUR IEAR  1TOSYEARS 5 vEARS TaTAL The unused committed credit fines amounted to kEUR 160,570 on 31 December
Mon-current interest-bearing 202
liabilities - 127500 66.000 193,500 0.
Currentinterest-hearing
fiabilities 9692 - - 9.692
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 2020 9,692 127,500 66,000 203,192
IFRS 16 leases standard 2860 4656 - 7516
Total on 31 December 2020 12.552 132,156 46,000 210,708
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18. Pension liabilities

On 31 December 2020, the net debts of defined benefit pension plans amount
to kEUR 4 Q56 as opposed to kEUR 4,036 at the end of 2019. This debt consists
mainly of provisions for early retirement pensions (' bridging pensions} in Belgium,

and for defined benefit pension plans in the Netherdands, France and Germany.

IN THOUSANDS OF ELIR 1020 207
Net periodic cost

Service cost 210 02
Interest charges 15 46
(Gains) [ losses {82) ]
NET PERIODHC COST 03 229
Remeasurements {recognised in OCI)

Remeasurements on the defined benefit abligation 47 170
REMEASUREMENTS 7 170
Movement in the net liability

Net debts as at 1 January 4036 3754
Service cost 70 102
Interest charges 15 46
Remeasurements 47 70
Employers contribution (84} m7
{Gains} { losses 82 81
Other 137)

NET DEBT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 4,065 4,036

Defined benefit costs are splitinto 2 categories.
- Current service cost, past-service cost, gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements:

- Net interest expense or income.

The total service cost. the net interest expense, the remeasurement of other fong
term personnel charges, administrative expenses and taxes for the year are included

in the personnel charges in the consalidated income statement. The remeasurement
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an the net defined benefit liability is included in the statement of comprehensive

income as part of other comprehensive income.

For the defined benefit pension plan, provisions are formed by caleulating the actuarial
value of future payments to the employees in question. No investments are held in

respect of these pension plans.

The actuarial calculation for the Belgian companies is based on the following

assumptions:

2020 2015
Discount rate 0.02% 0.27%
Inflation rate 180%p.a 1.80% p.a

No major adaptations were required in the past for pension liabilities

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the

most significant of which are detaled below-

- Changes in bond yields: a decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
lizhilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
plan’s bond holdings.

- Salaryrisk: the majority of the plans  benefit obligations are calculated by reference
to the future salaries of plan members. As such, 2 higher than expected salary
increase of plan members will lead to higher liabilities.

- Lengevity risk: pension plans provide for benefits for the life of the plan members,

so increases in life expectancy will result in anincrease in the plan’s liabilities

The actuary has performed a sensitivity analysis on actuarial assumptions used In
this respect, both the discount rate and the inflation rate were altered by 50 basis
points. A change in the estimates used, as recorded above, does not lead to a possible

matenal impact on Lotus Bakeries financial statements.
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Defined contribution plan

As part of a defined contribution plan, the Group pays contributions to wellde-
fined insurance institutions. Management of the pension plan is outsourced to an
insurance company. 1 hese employer contributions are subtracted from the results
for the year concerned. The Group has no further payment cbligations in addition

to these contributions.

Because of the Belgian legislation applicable to 2™ pillar pension plans (so-called
‘Law Vandenbroucke'), all Belgian defined contribution plans have to be considered
under IFRS as defined benefit plans. This ‘Law Vandenbroucke', which came into
force in 2004, states that in the context of defined contribution plans, the employer
must quarantee a mirmum return of 3.75% on employee contributions and 3.25%
on employer contributions. As from 1 January 2018, these percentages will be
replaced by 3 single percentage which changes in line with market rates, subject to

aminimum of 1.75% and a maximum of 3.75%, reducing the risk for the employer.

Because of this muimmum guaranteed return for defined contribution ptans in
Belgium, the employer is exposed to a financial risk {there is a legal obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay alt employee
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods). These plans
should therefore in principle be dassified and accounted for as defined benefit plans
under IAS19.

In the past the company did not apply the defined benefit accounting for these plans
because the return on plan assets provided by insurance companies was sufficent to
cover the minimum guaranteed return. As a result of continuous low interest rates
offered by the European financial markets, the employers in Belgium effectively
assummed a higher financial risk related to the pension plans with a minimum fixed
guaranteed return thanin the past, requiring them to measure the potentialimpact
of defined benefit accounting for these plans. We made an estimate of the potential

addimonal liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and these are assessed as not significant.

The Group expects to pay around kEUR 3,802 of contributions to these defined
contribution plans in 2021,

Lotus Bakeries
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19. Provisions

The provisions mainly relate to contractual or legal obligations

towards personnel.

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR TOTAL
Provisions on 1 January 2020 306
Reversal of unutilized provisions (3)
Provisions used during the year

Provisions on 51 December 2020 303
Long term 282
Short term A
IN THOUSANDS OF EUR TOTAL
Provisions on 1 January 2019 398
Reversal of unutilized provisions (2
Provisians used during the year {90
Provisions on 31 December 2019 306
Long term 285
Short term 2

Current provisions are expected to be settled within 12 months.

Annual Repore 2020

20. Financial derivatives

The Lotus Bakeries Group uses financial derivatives to cover risks from adverse
exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations. No derivatives are used for trading
purposes. Financial derivatives are initially valued at cost price and thereafter at fair
value. The financial instruments are level 2 instruments. T he fair value is catculated
on the basis of the available market information. With respect to put options on

non-controlling interests, please refer to note 21.

Interest rate hedges

The interest rate contracts cover the interest rate risk of the financial liabilities with
variable interest rates based an the Euriber. The fair value of the interest rate derivatives
is calculated using a model that takes into account the available market information

on current and expected interest rates {Jevel 2 valuation).

In 2019, a new long-term finance agreement was signed, under which some of the
pastlong-term loans were repaid early in 2019 and 2020. Together with the repay-
ment, new long-term finance was also arranged, at a fixed rate. The market value of
the interest rate swaps was partly recognised in 2019 (kEUR -1.478). repayment
of these interest rate swaps took place in 2020, the difference between both is
recognised in 2020.

Lotus Bakeries also has a foan agreement from 2015 for which an interest rate
agreement was entered into at the same time (vanable for fixed) to hedge against
fluctuations in cash flow caused by changes in interest rates. As of 21 December
2020, the market value of the existing interest rate swaps was kEUR -717 and is
included in equity as a change in market value under other comprehensive income

(loss on cash flow hedge, kELR 144)
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Exchange rate hedges

The Group is subject to foreign currency risks. The main foreign currency transactions
take place in USD, GBP, ZAR, CHF, SEK, CNY and KRW. The net foreign exchange
risk of these currencies are hedged by forward contracts whenever there exists a
material uncovered net nisk for the Group. At the end of 2020, Lotus Bakeries did

not own a material foreign currency derivative.

21. Other non-current liabilities

Ad the end of 2019, other non-current financial liabilities stood at EUR 24 S million
These mainly arise from the impact of the financial liabifities relating te put options
granted to third parties with respect to the entire non-controlling interest in Natural
Balance Foods Ltd.. where these put options give halders the right to sell part or the
whole of their investment in this subsidiary. In May 2020, these put options were
almost fully exercised by the founders. At the end of December 2020, Lotus Bakeries
held 979% of the shares, with the remaining 2.1% still held by the founders Other
non-current habilities stood at EUR 1.7 million at the end of December 2020 and
mostly relate to the put options for the 21% of shares nat yet held by Lotus Bakeries.

These put options are unconditional and the exercise price depends on the future
results (turnaver and operating result) of Natural Balance Foods Ltd. in accordance
with |AS 32, where non-controlling interests hold put options giving them the right
to sell their investment, a financial liability is recorded for the present value of the

exercise price expected to be paid. These put options are level 3 instruments

The counterpart of this liability is a cancellatian of the underlying non-controlling
interest. The difference between the value of the non-controlling interest and the
fair value of the |iabi|ity is added to the consolidated reserves, which are included in
shareholders’ equity. This item is adjusted at the end of each reporting period to take
into account changes in the exercise price expected to be paid for the option and
non-controlling interests. If the option expires without being exercised, the liability

is cancelled with the non-controlling interests and consolidated reserves.

Lotus Bakeries 1

22, Trade payables and other liabilities

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 31-12-2020 3-12-201%
Trade payables 87370 88716
Remuneration and social secunty 26.508 4146
Tax payables

VAT payables 145 254

Tax payables 12,701 11630

Total 12,846 11,384
Other current habilities 4.624 5.240
Accrued charges and deferred income 4404 3657
TOTAL 135,752 133,643

The increase in 2020 1s mainly due to the increase in staff liabilities due to a higher

number of employees. induding at the factories in Mebane, Lembeke and South Africa.
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23. Personnel costs

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 209

Salaries and wages 92,461 83848
Social security contributiens 17103 15.358
Contributions for company pension plans with fixed contributian 3965 3491
Other persannel casts 21,587 20,796
Total personnel costs 11116 123.49%
Average number of members of personnel 2,214 1,821
Number of members of personnel as at the end of the year 2155 2056

The other personned costs include among other things the costs of temporary staff,

training costs and compensation for directors

Personnel costs increased in 2020 compared with 2019 due to the increase in the

number of staff.
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24, Share-based payments

The stock option plan ratified by the Board of Directors of March 2012 stpulates
that options are granted each financial year to executives and serior management,

based on category, results and evaluation

One option gives the holder the right to purchase one normal | otus Bakeries share
at the fixed exercise price. The exerase price 1s equal to the average closing stock
market price of the underlying share during the thirty calendar days prior te offenng
date. The standing options have a term of five years. After the exercise period, the
options are no longer vahd. The exercise period of the options granted in 2007
has been extended by five years under the terms of the Economic Recovery Act
{'Herstelwet'). To retain their exercise nghts, option holders must remain attached
to Lotus Bakeries or an Affiliated Company as an employee or executive director.
These rights remain in their entirety in the event of pension retirement, early pension

retirement, invalidity or death. Cptions are exercised via equity.

In 2020, 962 share options were granted to and accepted by Lotus Bakeres
employees. In 2019, 1,199 share options were granted to and accepted by Lotus

Bakeries employees.

The share options and warrants outstanding at the end of 2020 have a weighted

average term of two years and seven months (2019 two years and one month).

The fair value of the options is estimated at the time of allotment, using the
binomial valuation method. This valuation model is based on the following market
data and assumptions: the share price at the time of allotment, the exercise price.
the exercise arrangements, the estimated volatility. the dividend expectations and
the risk-free interest rate. The fair value of the share options and warrants is charged

to the vesting period‘
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For all allotted and accepted options, a charge of kEUR 521 was recorded in the
incomne staterment in 2020 (kEUR 568 in 2019). For share options exercised during
2020, the weighted average share price at exercise date was EUR 2,851.54 (2019.

EUR 2,460.50).

The final warrants owned by senior management and executives of Lotus Bakeries

were exercised during the first half of 2019 and the weighted average share price at

exercise date was 2,390 eurcs.

Number of options and warrants 2020 2019

Outstanding at 1 January 8,568 9,998
Options granted during the year 962 119%
Options exerarsed during the year (4.140) (2.249)
Chptions expired during the year (123} (100)
Warrants exercised during the year - {280)
Outstanding at 31 December 5,267 8.568
Exercisable at 31 December E2h] 2182
Charge recorded in the income statement {kEUR} 521 568

The weighted average exercise price of options and warrants is as follows:
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INEUR 2020 it

Outstanding at 1 January 1,891.03 1,591.17
Options granted during the year 2,82895 235158
Options exercised during the year 1.464 49 102904
Options expired during the year 199164 142523
Warrants exercised during the year 24602
Qutstanding at 31 December 2,395.26 1,891.03
Exercisable at 31 December 1.702.49 124675

The weighted fair value of the cptions and assumptions used in applying the

option pricing model are as follows.

2020

2019

Number of years

Number of months
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ALLOTED N ALLOTIED EXZ‘FLEJSSBEES AVAILABLE BALANCE EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISE PERIGD
2015 Options 3302 3.302 - 1.243 57 01012013 - 07/05/2020
2006 Options 2.534 1993 241 1702 4% 012020 - 12/05{2021
2017 Qptions 1,626 - 1.626 233177 oljo1f2021 - 11/05/2022
2018 Options 1139 - 1138 23730 Q012022 - 14{05{2023
2019 Options 1199 . 1199 2351.58 01/01/2023 - 09/05/2024
2020 Options 962 - 962 282895 ojoyoH - 07/05/2025
Total 10,562 5,295 5,267
! i i i
R T
The weighted fair value of the options and assumptions used in applying the option The volatility measured at the standard deviation is based on daily share prices of
pricing model are as follows: Lotus Bakeries over the last three years
2020 2019
Fair value of option; granted 47165 131,55
Share price 282000 2,530 00
Exercise price 2.82895 235158
Expected volatiity 3507% 3 14%
Expected dividends 095% 092%
Risk-Free interest rate {0.36%) {0.29%)
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25. Depreciation and amortisation of

(in)tangible assets

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2019
Depreciation of Intangible assets 6 644
Depreciation of property. plant & equipment 20,085 17110
Total 21,001 17,754

The increase in depreciation is largely attributable to the US Biscaff® factory, which
has been operational since August 2019. The application of the new [FRS 16 standard
has animpact of kEUR 3,284 on depreciation on property. plant and equipment in
2020, against animpact of KEUR 2,948 in 2019 See rotes 5. 7 and 27 concerning

tangible assets, intangible assets and non-recurrent operating result.

26. Other operating income and charges

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2009
Other costs

Other taxes 3054 2982
Other operating charges 2.865 272
Total 5.919 3,254
Qther revenues

Transpart charges 2 ©)
Fixed assets - own construction (856) (850)
Other operating income {6.924) (2.696)
Total (7.751) (3.555)
Other operating charges (incame) {1,832) (301)
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The other charges are mainly local indirect taxes (property taxes, municipal taxes,

packaging tax, etc.), losses on sales of fixed assets and compensation amounts.

The other income consists primarily of external sales of raw materials, various costs
recovered at the time of sale, cantributions to the cost of training, and damage

compensation payments.

27. Non-recurrent operating result

Grouped under non-recurrent operating result are those operating income items
and charges that do not belong to or derive from the recurrent operating activities
of the Group. This categery includes primarily results from the disposal of fixed
assets, any goodwill impairment losses, write-downs or impairment fosses on brands
from takeovers, project costs for the start-up of new factories under construction,

provisicns, costs and income for restructuring, pandemics and takeovers.

The non-recurrent operating result at the end of 2020 amounts to kEUR -4,593.
This is primarily made up of COVID-19-related costs in order to guarantee
continuity and safety in the factories. In addition, further expenses were incurred in
the first half of the year in the United States to support the Biscoff® factory and for
the installation of the BEAR packaging line.

In 2019 the non-recurrent operating result amounted to kEUR -2,292. This is made
up of the project and start-up costs for the factory in the United States and the result
of the acquisition of the factory in South Africa.
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28, Financial results

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 209

Interest axpense {income) 2726 4,460
Interest charges 2933 3306
Farr value valusnon of the financal instruments - 1478
Interest income (207) (324)
Foreign exchange losses (gains) (51) (2.132)
Exchange rate losses 5480 2497
Exchange rate gains (5.551) (4729}
Other financial expenses (income} 329 286
Financial results 3,004 2,514

On an annual basis, the Group reports a financial charge of kEUR 3,004 versus
kEUR 2,514 in 2019. The net financial result for 2020 consists maostly of interest
expenses. This decrease is partly explained by the refinancing of long-term debts
at the end of 2019, In addition the negative market value of interest rate swaps was
included in the result for 2019. These interest rate swaps were repaid in 2020. The
change in the foreign exchange result is related to the realisation of the revaluation

of balance sheet positions in pounds sterling, which delivered a profit in 2013,
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29. Taxes

Income tax amounted to EUR 21 million and fell by 6% compared with 2019, The
lowering of the tax rate from 292 58% to 25% in Belgium and the release from deferred
tax on the foreign exchange result arising on the repayment of an intercompany debt
had a pasitive impact on the tax expense. The tax expense also includes a negative
impact on deferred taxes as a result of the rollback of the rate reduction proposed
in the Netherlands in 2021. The average effective tax rate was 20.3% in 2020
compared with 22 8% in 2019,

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 209

Income taxes on the results

Income taxes on the results of the current year 20143 24481
Tax adjustments for prior years - {5.528) - {1.882)
Deferred taxes of the current year - 6,357 N (282)
Total tax tharge reparted in the income statement - 209712 B 2517
Accounting profit before tax 103,517 98,086
Effective tax rate of the year 20.26% 22.75%

Reconciliation between theoretical and effective tax rate

Results before taxation 103,517 98,086
Legal tax rate - 25.00% - 2958%
Legal income tax expense 25.879 25014
Effact of diferem tax rates in other countries (901 (2.786)
Deductions of taxable ncome {Deduction Notional Interest «

various tax credits) {1493) (1.259)
Tax adjustments for prior years {1.437) 1175)
Taxes ondividend income 48

Disaliowed expenses 2350 784
Tay free income {206) (462)
Tax osses used for which no deferred tax asset has been recorded Moy {232)
Changes in tax rate or new taxes 1818 (1.747)
Deferred taxes on the foreign exchange result through repayment

intercompany debt (495m 0
Other (25) 180
Effectwve tax 20972 237

Effective taxrate 20.26% 1175%
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30. Earnings per share

Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s share in net profit by the
weighted average number of outstanding shares over the year (total number of

shares - treasury shares}.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s share in net profit
by the weighted average number of outstanding shares over the year, adjusted for
the potential dilution of ordinary shares as a result of options and warrants granted

under the stock option plan for management (see note 24)

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 09
Net result - attributable to: 82,545 75.769

Non-controlling interests (48) 857

Equity holders of Lotus Bakeries 82,593 74912
Weaighted average number of shares 809.664 807.476
Ordinary earnings per share {EUR) - attributable tg

Non-controlling interests {006) 106

Equity holders of Lotus Bakeries 102 01 92.77
Dilutive effect 1,520 2372

Weighted average number of shares under optien 5,655 8717

Weighted average number of shares which should be ssued at

average markel rate {4.135) (6.340)
Weighted average number of shares atter effect of dlunon 811,184 809 848
Diluted earnings per share (EUR) - attnbutable to

Non-cantrolling nterests {0.08) 106

Equity holders of Lotus Bakeries 101.82 9250
Total number of shares 816,013 216013
Earnings per share (EUR) - attrbutable to

Non-controlling nterests {006) 105

Equity holders of Lotus Bakeries 101.22 91.80
Total number of shares less treasury shares B10.471 806,332
Earnings per share (EUR) - attrbutable to

Non-controlling interests {008) 106

Equity holders of Lotus Bakeries 10191 9290
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31. Related parties

A list of all Group companies is provided in note 1. Further details of the share-
holding structure of Lotus Bakeries NV as of 31 Decernber 2020 are contained in the
Corporate Goverance Staterment in part 1 of the 2020 annual report of Lotus Bakeries.

For information on the remuneration of the CEQ and the remuneration of the
executive managers in 2020, we refer to the remuneration report included in part
1 of the 2020 annual report.

Apart fram remuneration and transactions between companies included in the

scope of consolidation, ne significant transactions took place with related parties.
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32. Rights and commitments not reflected
in the balance sheet

1. Commitments to acquire tangible fixed assets
As per 31 December 2020, the Group had kEUR 4,070 of commitments (20]9:
kEUR 6,642) for the purchase of fixed assets.

2. Contracts for raw materials and finished products
Purchased but not yet delivered raw materials and finished products in 2021 and
2022 amount to kEUR 108,780, as detailed below.

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2009
Less than one year 87.705 12728
More than one year and less than hve years 21075 18.840

3. Other rights and commitments
Bank guarantees as per 31 December 2020: kEUR 1,530 (as per 31/12/2019:
kEUR 1,041},

Lotus Bakeries commits itself not to dispose of, mortgage or pledge any fixed assets
without pricr consultation with the credit-granting institutions. These assets serve

as guarantee for the loans {'full negative pledge’).

AnnuaiReporr 2020

33, Financial risk management

The Lotus Bakenes Group's greatest market risks are fluctuations in raw material and

packaging prices, exchange rates and interest rates.

For a description of these risks, please refer to the financial information contained in the

report of the Board of Directors in part 1 of the 2020 annual report of Lotus Bakeres.

34, Categories and fair value of
financial instruments

Financial Assets by Class and Measurement Category

Financial assets (trade recejvables, cash and cash equivalents) are measured at
amortised cost. Financial liabilities (interest-bearing liabilities, trade pavables) are
recognised at amortised cost. The amortised cost approximates the fair value as
closely as possible. The put options included in the other non-current liabilities are
valued based on the market approach (multipte). Derivative financial instruments

are measured at fair value.
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Financial Liabilities by Class and Measurement Category

31 DECEMBER 2020

FINANCIAL
ASSETS MEASURED
AT AMORTISED

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

DERIVATIVES AVAILABLE
- THROUGH DERIVATIVES FORSALE
LOANS AND PROFIT -THROUGH THROUGH
INTHOUSANDS OF ELIR NOTE RECEIVABLES ORLOSS EQUITY EQUITY TOTAL
Trade receivables n 82.856 - 82856
Cash and cash equivalents 1213 81.261 - 81.261
Totel financial assets 164,117 - - - 164307
Financial Liabilities by Class and Measurement Category 31 DECEMBER 2019
FINANCIAL
ASSETS MEASURED
AT AMORTISED
COST FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
DERIVATIVES AVAILABLE
- THROUGH DERIWATIVES FORSALE
LOANS AND PROFIT -THROUGH THROUGH
INTHOUSANDSOF EUR NOTE RECEIVABLES QORLODSS EQUITY EQUITY ToTAL
Trade receivables n 79.072 - 1072
Cash and cash equivalents 12,13 40,093 - 40,093
Total financial assets 119,165 - - - 115,165
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Financial Liabilities by Class and Measurement Category 31 DECEMBER 2020
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
LIABILITIES “THROUGH DERIVATIVES
AT AMORTISED PROFIT ~THROLIGH FAIR VALUE

INTHOUSANDS OF EUR NOTE cosT ORLOSS EQUITY HIERARCHY TOTAL
Interest-bearing fiabilties By 193,500 - - - 193,500
Derwvative financial instruments pli] - - m Level2 {7
ther non-current fiabifities bil H - 1738 Level 3 1743
Interast-beanng hiabiities IFRS 15 leases standard 13,17 4656 . - . 4,656
Non-current liabilities 198,161 - 1,021 - 199,182
Interest-hearing hiabities 12,17 9692 - - - 9692
Trade payables 22 87.370 - . - B7370
Interest-bearing liabilities [FRS 16 jeases standard 37 2.860 - . - 2860
Current liabilities 99,922 - - - 99922
Total financial liabilities 198,083 - 1.0 - 299,104
Financial Liabilities by Class and Measurement Category 3% DECEMBER 201%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
LIABILITIES - THROUGH DERIVATIVES
AT AMORTISED PROFIT - THROUGH FAIRVALUE

NTHOUSANDS OF EJR NOTE COST CRLOSS EQUITY HIERARCHY TOTAL
Interest-beanng liabilties 1317 152003 - - - 152003
Denvative financial mstruments 20 - 1478 862 Level 2 2340
Othes non-current liabilities 2 - - 4495 Level 3 24495
Non-current kiabilities 152.003 1,478 25,357 - 178,838
Interest-bearing hablities 13y 33647 - - - 33847
Trade payables 22 88,716 - - . 88716
Current liabilities 122,363 - - - 122,363
Interest-bearing hiabihties IFRS 16 leases standard 1317 8,935 - - - 8939

Total financial liabilities 283,305 1478 25357 - 310,140
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date IFRS 13 requires, for financial instruments that are measured in the balance
sheet at fair value, the disclosure of fair value measurements by level of fair value
measurement hierarchy. For financial instruments not measured at fair value, the

disclosure of their fair value and the fair value measurement level is necessary.
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The fair value measurements have to be categorised by the following level of fair

value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in an active market
is measured based on quoted {unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities
A market is considered as active if quoted prices are readily and reqularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency Those prices represent actual and reqularly occurring market transactions

on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation technigues
maximise the use of cbservable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine
the fair value of an instrument are observable, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derved from prices), the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs used in applying the valuation
technique 1s not based an observable market data, the financial instrument is
included in Level 3.

Mo transfers between the different fair value hierarchy levels tock place in 2020
and 2019,
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35. Research and development
External and internal costs of research and development are expensed to the income
staternent during the year in which they are ncurred. For 2020 these costs amounted

tokEUR 1,627,

EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL COSTS OF RESEARCH

YEAR AND DEVELOPMENT IN THOUSANDS OF EUR
2020 1627
2015 153%
2018 1.623
2017 1.568
2016 1320

36. Subsequent events

No significant facts have occurred after 31 December 2020 with a material impact

on the 2020 financial staternents.
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37. Management responsibility statement

We hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards), give us a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and prafit or loss of the company
and the subsidiaries included in the consolidation as & whole, and that the annual
report includes a fair review of the important events that have occurred during the
year 2020 and of the major transactions with the related parties, and thew impact
an the consolidated financial statements, together with & description of the principal

risks and uncertainties with which the company is confronted

Lembeke, 15 April 2021
On behalf of the Board of Directors

Jan Boone, CEC
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38. Information about the Statutory Auditor, its
remuneration and additional services rendered

The company's Statutery Auditor is PwC Bedrijfsrevisoren BV, represented by

Lien Winne.

IN THOUSANDS OF EUR

Audit fee for the Group audit 2020

Lotus Bakeries NY 86
Lotus Bakeries Group 373
Total 458
Fees for the mandates of PwC Bedrijfsrewisoren 33
Fees for the mandates of persons related

to PwC bedriffsrevisoren 127
Group's Auditor fees for additional services rendered

Other audit-related fees [
Tax fees

Other non-audt fees

Fees for additional services rendered by persons related to Pw( Bedrijfsravisoren

Other audit-related fees 15
Taxfees 97

Other non-audit fees

Lotus Bakeries
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

STATUTCRY AUDITCR'S REPORT TO THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS
MEETING ON THE CONSQUDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

We present to you cur statutory auditor’s report in the context of our statutory
audit of the consolidated accounts of Lotus Bakeries NV (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries {jointly “the Group”}. This report includes our report on the consolidated
accounts, as well as the other legal and regulatory requirements. This forms part of

an integrated whole and is indivisible

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting d.d. 10 May
2019, following the proposal formulated by the board of directors and following the
recommendation by the audit committee Our mandate will expire on the date of
the general meeting which will deliberate on the annual accounts for the year ended
31 December 2021. We have performed the statutory audit of the Company's

consolidated accounts for 14 consecutive years.
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Report on the consolidated accounts

tingualificd opintan

We have performed the statutory audit of the Group's consolidated accounts, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in eguity and the consol-
idated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and which is characterised by a consolidated balance sheet
tetal of EUR'OC0 844 227 and a profit for the year, attributable to equity holders
of Lotus Bakeries, of ELUR'0Q0 82 593

In eur opinion, the consolidated accounts give  true and fair view of the Group’s
net equity and consclidated finarcial position as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial perforrmance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended. in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union and with the legal and regulatory requirements
applicab\e in Be\gium‘

Hass fur unguatified npuvan

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) as applicable in Belgium. Furthermore, we have applied the International
Standards on Auditing as approved by the IAASB which are applicable to the year-
end and which are not yet approved at the national level Cur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Statutery auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated accounts” section of our report. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated accounts in Belgium, including the requirements

related to independence.

We have obtained from the board of directors and Company officials the explanations
and information necessary for performing our audit. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opirion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those miatters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated accounts of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated accounts
as a whole, and in forming our cpirion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Description of the Key Audit Matter

The carrying value of the Group’s goodwill and ether intangible assets with an
indefinite life amounts te EUR'000 216,485 and EUR'000 137,239 respectively
at 31 December 2020.

These assets are subject toimpairment testing on an annual basis or more frequently

if there are indicators of impairment.

We consider this as most significant to our audit because the determination of
whether or not an impairment charge is necessary involves significant judgement

in estimating the future results of the business.

How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We evaluated the appropriateness of the Group's accounting policies and assessed

compliance with the policies in accordance with IFRS.

We evaluated management’s annual impairment testing and assessment of the indi-
cators of impairment and challenged impairment calculations by assessing the future
cash flow forecasts used in the models, and the process by which they were drawn up,

including comparing them to the latest budgets approved by the board of directers.
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We understood and challenged:

+ Assumptions used in the Group’s budget and internal forecasts and the long-term
growth rates by comparing them to economic and industry forecasts;

+ The discount rate by assessing the cost of capital and other inputs including
benchmarking with comparable crganizations:

+ The historical accuracy of budgets to actual results to determine whether cash
flow forecasts are reliable based on past experience;

» The mechanics of the underlying calculations.

In performing the above work, we utilized our internal valuation experts to provide
challenge and external market data to assess the reasorableness of the assumptions

used by management.

We evaluated the sensitivity analysis around the key drivers within the cash flow
forecasts to ascertain the extent of change in those assumptions and also considered

the likelihood of such a movement in those key assumptions arising.

Whilst recogrizing that cash flow forecasting, impairment modelling and valuations are
allinherently udgmentaf, we concluded that the assumptions used by management

were within an acceptable range of reagsonable estimates.

Rev r nition relatin mer Ir: nts = Note 2
Description of the key audit matter

As described in Note 2 on the applied accounting policies, the Group enters inte
commaercial agreernents with its customers whereby volume-related allowances,
promotional and marketing allowances and various other fees and discounts are
contractually agreed. The Group measures revenue, cost of sales and cost of services
& other goods taken into consideration the estimated amount based on those con-

tractual agreements and the specific classification critenia in accordance with IFRS.
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Due to the nature of seme arrangements there is a risk that these arrangements

are not appropriately accounted for and as a result revenue would be misstated.

We consider this as most significant to our audit because the assessment of customer

allowances requires significant judgement from management concerning:

« The nature and level of fulfilment of the company's obligations under the
contractual agreements;
+ Estimates with respect to sales volumes to support the required provision to

fulfil the current obligation towards the customers.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
We evaluated the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue recognition accounting
policies, in particular those relating to volume rebates and promotional & marketing

allowances and assessed compliznce with the policies in accordance with IFRS.

We tested the effectiveness of the Group's controls over accaunting for commercial
arrangements and the accuracy of the contractual agreements registered in the

accounting system.

I addition, we challenged management’s assumptions used in determining the
commercial accruals through discussions with management and performing specific

substantive procedures including:

» A sample basis on which we agreed the recorded amounts to contractual evidence;

* Inspecting supporting decumentation for a sample of manual journals posted to
revenue accounts;

* Testing credit notes issued after period end to assess the completeness of
the commercial accruals recorded:

* A run down cn prior years' commercial accruals to evaluate the reliability of

management’s estimates.

Qur procedures canfirmed that management’s assumptions and estimates in respect

of accounting for commercial arrangements are appropriate in all material aspects.
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Responsibilities of the board of directors for the
preparation of the consolidated accounts

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated accounts
that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reperting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and with the legal and regulatory
requirements applicable in Belgium, and for such internal contral as the board of
directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated accounts

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer.

In preparing the consolidated accounts, the board of directors is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continve as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
uriless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Statutory suditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated accounts

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
accounts as a whele are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a
hugh evel of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with |SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated accounts.

In performing our audit, we comply with the legal. requlatory and normative frame-
work applicable to the audit of the consolidated acceunts in Belgium. A statutory
audit does not provide any assurance as to the Group's future viability nor as to
the efficiency or effectiveness of the board of directors’ current or future business

management at Group level. Cur responsibilities in respect of the use of the going
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concern basis of accounting by the board of directors are described below.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated accounts,
whether due to fraud or ertor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errcr, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit inorder to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of directors;

+ Condclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or condtiens that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. [fwe conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our statutory
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated accounts or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our statutory auditar’s report.
However. future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern;

+  Evaluate the averal presentation, structure and content of the consolidated accounts,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated accounts represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

+  Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa-
tion of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consahdated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and tirming of the audit and significant audit indings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated accounts
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or requlation precludes public disclosure

about the matter.
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Other legal and regulatory requirements

Responsibilities of the board of directors

The board of directors 1s responsible for the preparation and the content of the
directors’ report on the consolidated accounts and the separate report on non-
financial nformation and the other information included in the annual report on the

consolidated accounts.

Statutory auditor’s responsibilities

In the centext of our engagement and in accordance with the Belgian standard which
is complementary to the International Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as applicable in
Belgium, our responsibility is to verify, in all material respects, the directors’ report
on the consolidated accounts, the separate report an non-financial infermation and
the other information included in the annual report on the consolidated accounts

and to report on these matters.

Aspects related to the directors’ report on the
consolidated accounts and to the other information
included in the annual report on the consolidated
accounts

In our opinion, after having performed specific procedures in relation te the directors’
report on the conselidated accounts, this directors’ report is consistent with the
consolidated accounts for the year under audit and is prepared in accardance with

article 3:32 of the Companies’ and Associations Code
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In the context of our audit of the consolidated accounts, we are also responsible for
considering. in particular based on the knowledge acquired resulting from the audit,
whether the directors’ report on the consolidated accounts and the other information
included in the annual report on the consolidated accounts are materially misstated
or contains information which is inadequately disclosed or atherwise misleading. In
hght of the procedures we have performed, there are no material misstatements we

have to report to you.

The non-financial infarmation required by virtue of article 3:32, 82 of the Companies’
and Associations’ Code is included in the directors report in chapter 5 ‘Corporate
sccial responsibility’ on the consolidated accounts. The Company has prepared the
non-financial infarmation, based on the Sustainable Development Goals (SOG)
framework. However, in accordance with articke 5:80, §1,5° of the Companies and
Associations’ Code, we do not express an opinion as to whether the non-financial
information has been prepared in accordance with the Sustainable Developrnent Goals

(SDG) framework as disclosed in the directors report on the consolidated accounts
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Statement related to independence

= Qur registered audit firm and our network did not provide services which are
incompatible with the statutory audit of the consolidated accounts, and our regis-
tered audit firm remained independent of the Group in the course of our mandate.

* The fees for additional services which are compatible with the statutory audit
of the consohdated accounts referred ta in article 3:65 of the Companies’ and
Associations Code are correctly disclosed and itemized in the notes to the con-

solidated accounts.

Other statements
This report is consistent with the additional repert ta the audit committee referred
to in article 11 of the Regulation {EUY N°® 53772014,

15 April 2021
The statutory auditor
PwC Reviseurs d Entreprises SRL / PwC Bedrijfsrevisoren BY

Represented by

Lien Winne

Réviseur d'Entreprises { Bedrijfsrevisor

Lotus Bakeries
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ABRIDGED FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
GROUP LOTUS BAKERIES

Consolidated balance sheet

IN THQUSANDS OF ELIR 31-12-2020 31-12-2019 3-72-2008 21122007 31-12-2016
NON CURRENT ASSETS 622,840 641,122 545,647 447,693 437,310
Praperty, plant anc equipment 258182 263,793 219.897 174426 161,590
Goodwill 216485 229365 177,639 141001 144,368
Intangible assets 139,966 142.709 138.887 123924 126,006
Parncipating interasts. - - 2448

Investment i other companies 4403 2243 12 12 7
Deferred tax assets 3351 2,505 3936 4310 1834
Other non-current assets 453 507 2828 4020 455
CURRENT ASSETS 221,387 171,507 165,925 149,801 110,692
inventorses 46827 44,481 39.066 33,653 32175
Trade recewables 82,856 79.072 71,097 60104 50,922
Cash and cash equvalents 81.261 40,093 45,567 48129 19932
TOTAL ASSETS 844,227 812,629 msn 597,494 543,002
tQuITy 433,744 402,477 346,927 293213 248,464
Non-current liabilities 261,841 239,584 198,042 193,923 197,245
Interest-bearing habilities 198156 158.010 116,500 117500 118,500
Deferred tax fiabihes 57195 50,737 52725 49206 50666
Other non-current habilities 1743 24,500 22,602 20987 16.560
Current liabilities 148,642 170,568 166,603 110,358 102,293
Interest-beanng liabilities 12.552 36.579 16.655 1750 1533
Trade payables 87370 88.716 86,794 68542 54742
Employee benehit expenses and social secunty 26,508 24146 21.330 18383 18.418
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 844,227 812,629 1,572 597,494 548,002
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Consolidated income statement

Lotus Bakeries

N THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2019 2008 2007 2386
TURNOVER 663,289 612,737 556,435 524,055 507,208
RECURRENT OPERATING RESULT (REBIT) m.114 102,891 95,030 89,349 83,945
Non-recurrent operating result {4.593) (2290 {3,005} [l 4,507
OPERATING RESULT {EBIT} 106,521 100.59% 92,025 89,258 88,452
Financial result {3.004) (2.504) (3328) (2.228) {2.675)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAXES 103,517 98,086 88,701 87.030 85,777
Tases (20972) (2237 (20829) (22397 (B33
J!ESULTAFTER TAXES 82,545 75,769 61,872 64,633 62,455
7NET RESULT - atiributable to 82,545 75,769 67,872 64,633 62,455
Nen-controlling interests {48) 857 964 1.094 1210
Equity halders of Lotus Bakenes 82593 492 66908 63539 61,245
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ABRIDGED STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LOTUS BAKERIES NV

Balance sheet after appropriation of profit

ASSETSIN THQUSANDS OF EUR 31122020 21.12-201% LIABILITIES IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 3112-2020 3°.12-2M8%
Fixed Assets 626,973 432,258 Equity 152,284 64,473
11, Intangible assets 2,994 4490 I Capital 3,591 1,591
A lssued capital 3.501 3541
I¥. Financial assets 623,980 427,768
A Afhlated enterpnises 623 980 427768 1. Share premium account 12797 12,797
1 Participating interests 623880 427768
V. Reserves 135,896 48,085
Current Assets 31,460 30,758 A Legal reserve 359 359
B Reserves not avarlable for distnbution 11546 15,938
VIl Amounts receivable within ene year 17,383 14512
1 Own shares 1474 15,866
A Trade debtors 16160 13660
2 Other 7 72
B fither amounts reconvable 1227 847
C Untaxed reserves 545 545
YIll. Current investments 1,474 15,866 D Reserves available for distnbution 123,446 31,243
A_Own shares 11.474 15.866
Amounts payable 506,149 398,543
IX. Cash at bank and in hand 2,583 360
V1II. Amounts payable after one year 208,168 10 .n2
X. Deferred charges and accrued income 20 20 A. Financial debts 198.455 98140
5 Other loans 198.455 98140
TOTAL ASSETS 658,433 463,016 D Other dehts 9715 9572
IX. Amounts payable within one year 297.981 290,823
B Froancial debts 259,813 258.03%
2. Otherioans 259.813 258,039
C Trade debts 5,895 5888
1 Suppliers 5895 5888
E.Taxes. remuneration and sociat security 3,037 517
1 Taves 3037 517
F. Other amounts payable 29236 26379
X. Accrued charges and deferred income - 8
TOTALLIABILITIES 658,433 463.016
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Non-consolidated income statement Appropriation of the result
IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 209 IN THOUSANDS OF EUR 2020 2019
A Profitto be apprapniated n7.030 34880
|. Operating income 16,160 13,595
1 Proht for the year available for appropriation 12030 34,8680
D Other operating income 16,160 13.595
C. Transfer ta capital and reserves (87.812) (8.518)
1. Operating charges (5.813) (5.036) 3 To other reserves 87812 8.518
B. Serwices and other goods 4243 3500 F Distributian of profit (29.118) (26.362)
B Depreciation of and other amounts written 1 Drvidends 78968 %12
off fermation expenses, intangible and tangibe fixed assets 1497 1497 ’ ' '
"enti 250 5
G. Other opersting charges 8 29 2 Directors’ entitlements 50
H Non-recurnng operaning charges )
1. Operating profit 10,347 8,559
t from the notes
IV. Financial income 126,376 nin Extract fro
A Income from hnancial fixed assets 122,621 30,004 VIIL Statement of capital 2020 2019 2020
€. Other hnancial ncome 3,755 1367 N THOLSANDS | INTHOUSANDS | NUMBER OF
OF EUR DFELUR SHARES
V. Financial charges (17.328) (3,576)
A.Debt charges 2927 1568 A. Capital
C Other fnancial charges 794 3 1 Issued capital
D Non-recurcent financial charges 13.607 At the end of the prececing year 3591 3,590
At the end of the year 359 3159
IX, Profit for the year before taxes 119,395 36,354 7 Structure o the capral
X. Income taxes {2.365) (1.474) 71 Dufferent categones of shares
A Income tases 7365 1474 Ordinary shares 3.591 3591 814.013
22 Registered shares and dematenialised shares
XI. Profit for the year 117,030 24,880 Registered 454111
i 1.9
XIIL. Profit For the year available for appropriation 17,030 34,880 Dematerialised sase
C. Teasury shares held by:
The company itself 1474 15,866 5,542
E. Amounts of authorised capital, not issued 1197 942
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
1. Assets

1.1, Formation expenses
Formation expenses are recorded at cost and depre-

ciated at 100%.

1.2. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at purchase or
transfer price

The amortisation percentages applied are:

- brand: 10%

- software: 33%

1.3. Financial fixed assets
Financial fixed assets are valued at acquisition price

or contribution value without supplementary costs.

Reductions in value are apphed where the estimated
value of the financial fixed assets 15 less than the accoun-
ting value and where the loss of value so determined
is of a lasting nature in the opinion of the Board of

Directors.

The estimated value of the financial fixed assets is
determined at the end of the accounting period based
onthe most recent available balance sheet and on one

or more criteria.

Reductions in value are reversed, up to the amount of
the previously recorded reductions in value, where the
valuation at the closing date of the accounting period

concerned sigrificantly exceeds the previous valuation.

1.4. Receivables
The necessary reductions in value are applied to

receivables, the collection of which is in doubt.

Receivables are recorded at their nrominal value, less

any credit notes remaining to be drawn up.

Receivables in foreign currencies are converted at the

exchange rate applying on the balance sheet date.

Negative exchange rate differences in non-euro
currencies are included in the income statement as

inthe past.

1.5. Investments and cash at bank and in hand

Treasury shares are valued at purchase price.

Cash at bank and in hand in foreign currency is converted

at the exchange rate applying on the balance sheet date.

Both the negative and the positive conversion differences

are included in the profit and loss account.
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2. Liabilities

2.1. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Provisions are made for all normally fareseeable

liabilities and charges.

2.2. Amounts payable within one year

Suppliers

Debts to suppliers are booked at their nominal value.
Debts in foreign currencies are valued at the rate of

exchange on the balance date.

Exchange rate differences are processed in the same

way as for foreign currency receivables
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Z. Additional information

The company is part of a VAT unit which was
formed within the Group and to which the following

companies belong:

- Lotus Bakeries NV

- Lotus Bakeries Belgig NV

- Cremers-Ribert NV

- Interwaffles SA

- Lotus Bakeries Corparate NV
- Biscuiterie Willems BV

Consequently, the company is jointly and severally

liable for the tax debts of all the above companies.

Lotus Bakeries
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Lotus Bakeries

REGISTERED OFFICE
Lotus Bakeries NV
Gentstraat 1

B-9971 Lembeke
T+329376261
F+3293762626

www lotushakenes com

Register of legal persons of Ghent,
Enterprise number 0401030.860

CONTACT

For further information about the data of the
annual review or more information about the
Lotus Bakeries Group. please contact:

Lotus Bakeries NV

Corporate Secretary

Gentstraat 1

B-9971 Lembeke

T+32937626 11

F+3293762626

corporate®@lotusbakeries com
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